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MINING AND METALLURGICAL COMPANY NORILSK NICKEL

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE PREPARATI ON
AND APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007

The following statement, which should be read injaoction with the independent auditors’ respotisids
stated in the independent auditors’ report seboyiages 2 - 3, is made with a view to distinguighi

the respective responsibilities of management laoskt of the independent auditors in relation to the
consolidated financial statements of Open JointiS@ompany “Mining and Metallurgical Company Ndkils
Nickel” and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) as issuwy the International Accounting Standards Board.

Management is responsible for the preparation néalidated financial statements that present fairly

the consolidated financial position of the GroughDecember 2007, the results of its operaticash dows
and changes in equity for the year then ended;dordance with International Financial Reportingrigtards
(“IFRS™).

In preparing the consolidated financial statemenenagement is responsible for:

«  selecting suitable accounting policies and applyiram consistently;
* making judgments and estimates that are reasonatlprudent;

e  stating whether IFRS have been followed, subjeangpmaterial departures disclosed and explained in
the consolidated financial statements; and

«  preparing the consolidated financial statementa going concern basis, unless it is inappropriate t
presume that the Group will continue in businesste foreseeable future.

Management, within its competencies, is also resiptefor:

« designing, implementing and maintaining an effecgystem of internal controls throughout the Group;

e maintaining statutory accounting records in comp&with local legislation and accounting standands
the respective jurisdictions in which the Group rapes;

»  taking steps to safeguard the assets of the Geoup;
« detecting and preventing fraud and other irregtidei

The consolidated financial statements for the yealed 31 December 2007 were approved on
6 June 2008 by:

ohwnd,

D. S. Morozov ’ ' o O. V. Lobanov
General Director Deputy General Director

Moscow, Russia
6 June 2008
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To shareholders of Open Joint Stock Company “Miningand Metallurgical Company
Norilsk Nickel™:

We have audited the accompanying consolidateddiabstatements of Open Joint Stock Company
“Mining and Metallurgical Company Norilsk Nickel'ha its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which
comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 8dnieer 2007, and the consolidated statements
of income, cash flows and changes in equity foryéer then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Management'’s responsibility for the consolidated fiancial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation amgfesentation of accompanying
consolidated financial statements in accordande witrnational Financial Reporting Standards.
This responsibility includes: designing, implemagtand maintaining internal control relevant to
the preparation and fair presentation of the cadetad financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud oresadecting and applying appropriate accounting
policies; and making accounting estimates thateasonable in the circumstances.

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on ¢hasnsolidated financial statements

based on our audit. We conducted our audit in decme with International Standards on Auditing.
Those standards require that we comply with ethisglirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance whether the coataifinancial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtaiditevidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statesieftte procedures selected depend on

the auditors’ judgment, including the assessmeth®fisks of material misstatement of

the consolidated financial statements, whetherntddieaud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditors consider internal caetelant to the Group’s preparation and
fair presentation of the consolidated financiatesteents in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, bufardhe purpose of expressing an opinion

on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal cdn#ka audit also includes evaluating

the appropriateness of accounting policies usedhfeteasonableness of accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating thelbpezaentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtdmedfficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion.

. . . . . Member of
Audit.Tax.Consulting . Financial Advisory. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu



Opinion

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated faialnstatements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Group é&ldbecember 2007, and the results of its financial
performance and its cash flows for the year th@®eeéiin accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards.

ngf@ e Y ety

Moscow, Russia
6 June 2008



MINING AND METALLURGICAL COMPANY NORILSK NICKEL

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007
US Dollars million

Notes
Revenue
Metal sales 7
Other sales 8
Total revenue
Cost of metal sales 9
Cost of other sales 15
Gross profit
Selling and distribution expenses 16
General and administrative expenses 17
Impairment of goodwill 24
Change in fair value of derivative financial liatids held for trading 40
Other net operating expenses 18
Operating profit
Finance costs 19
Income/(loss) from investments 20
Foreign exchange gain, net 21
Excess of the Group’s share in the fair value ofeets acquired
over the cost of acquisition 5
Share of profits/(losses) of associates 26
Profit before tax
Income tax 22
Profit for the year from continuing operations
Profit for the year from discontinued operation 48
Profit for the year
Attributable to:
Shareholders of the parent company
Minority interest
EARNINGS PER SHARE
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in idatiag the year 34

Basic and diluted earnings per share from contigpaind discontinued
operations attributable to shareholders of themqgazempany (US Dollars)

Basic and diluted earnings per share from contigpuiperations attributable to
shareholders of the parent company (US Dollars)

2007 2006
15,909 11,550
1,210 373
17,119 11,923
4,719 (3,158
(1,163 (345
11,237 8,420
(730 (536)
(899 (554)
(1,079 -
72 -
(1,179 (267)
7,431 7,063
(307, (79)
223 (199
146 25
166 -
76 (33)
7,735 6,777
(2,459 (1,805
5,276 4,972
— 993
5,276 5,965
5,327 5,989
(51) (24)
5,276 5,965
182,362,986 188,767,177
29.2 31.7
29.2 26.5



MINING AND METALLURGICAL COMPANY NORILSK NICKEL

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
AT 31 DECEMBER 2007
US Dollars million

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Goodwill

Intangible assets

Investments in associates
Other financial assets

Other taxes receivable
Deferred tax assets

Pension plans assets

Current assets

Inventories

Trade and other receivables
Advances paid and prepaid expenses
Other financial assets

Income tax receivable

Other taxes receivable

Cash and cash equivalents

Assets classified as held for sale

TOTAL ASSETS
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Capital and reserves
Share capital

Share premium
Treasury shares
Other reserves
Retained earnings

Equity attributable to shareholders of the parent @mpany
Minority interest

Non-current liabilities
Long-term borrowings
Employee benefit obligations
Environmental obligations
Derivative financial liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities

Current liabilities

Short-term borrowings

Current portion of employee benefit obligations
Trade and other payables

Advances received

Income tax payable

Other taxes payable

Derivative financial liabilities

Dividends payable

Liabilities associated with assets classified dd fur sale

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Notes

23
24
25
26
27
28

37

29
30
31
27

28
32

33

34

34
35

36

38
40
22

36
37
39

28
40

33

2007 2006
14,981 8,075
3,360 25
849 107
879 208
2,982 2,615
38 44

89 -

8 —
23,186 11,074
2,108 1,471
949 697
183 153
4,473 104
144 27
585 575
4,008 2,178
12,450 5,205
60 —
12,510 5,205
35,696 16,279
8 8
1,390 611
- (999
3,765 2,562
14,340 10,635
19,503 12,817
2,318 319
21,821 13,136
4,103 632
11 57
583 322

3 —
2,741 881
7,441 1,892
3,973 158
378 259
586 370
41 51
422 244
197 149
24 15
804 5
6,425 1,251
9 —
6,434 1,251
35,696 16,279




MINING AND METALLURGICAL COMPANY NORILSK NICKEL

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007
US Dollars million

Operating activities
Profit for the year

Adjustments for:

Income tax

Amortisation and depreciation

Finance costs

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment

Impairment of other financial assets

Impairment of goodwill

Share of post-acquisition profits and impairmeningkstments in associates
Loss/(gain) on disposal of subsidiaries

Excess of the Group’s share in the fair value ofseets acquired over the cost of acquisition
Change in fair value of derivative financial liatiéls held for trading

Interest income

Foreign exchange gain, net

Gain on disposal of available-for-sale investments

Gain on disposal of associates

Dividend income

Other

Operating profit before working capital changes

Increase in inventories

Decrease/(increase) in trade and other receivables
Decrease/(increase) in advances paid and prepp@hsgs
Decrease in other taxes receivable

Increase in employee benefit obligations
(Decrease)/increase in trade and other payables
Increase/(decrease) in advances received
Increase/(decrease) in other taxes payable

Cash flows from operations

Interest paid
Income tax paid

Net cash generated from operating activities
Investing activities

Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of cash acquilat increase of ownership in subsidiaries
Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Purchase of intangible assets

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment

Acquisition and establishment of associates

Proceeds from disposal of associates

Purchase of other financial assets

Proceeds from sale of other financial assets

Dividends received

Net cash (used in)/generated from investing activés
Financing activities

Proceeds from borrowings
Repayments of borrowings
Proceeds from increase in share capital of a Sgaeipose entity
Acquisition of special purpose entities
Buy back of issued shares
Proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares fronsurgastock,
net of direct expenses and attributable income tax
Cash distributed to shareholders on disposal oftBaGroup
Dividends paid by the Company
Dividends paid by the Group’s subsidiaries to mityashareholders

Net cash generated from/(used in) financing activiis
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year
Effect of translation to presentation currency
Cash and cash equivalents of disposal group

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

2007 2006
5,276 5,965
2,459 1,817

937 586
307 88
800 87
25 21
39 83
1,079 -
4 33
18 (6)
X238 -
(72) -
(247) (79)
(146) (25)
- (733)
(6) (117)
(25) (6)
9) (5)
10,193 7,709
(166) (73)
209 (265)
51 (64)
61 49
6 15
(133) 120
11 (38)
36 17)
10,268 7,436
(256) (63)
(2,672) (1,726)
7,340 5,647
(5,824) (269)
(1,140) (743)
(46) @7
88 46
(3,326) (151)
7 156
(3,575) (865)
1,032 2,225
25 6
(12,759) 378
10,183 573
(3,915) (1,066)
- 28
(70) -
- (999)
1,855 -
- (2,366)
(849) (1,079)
(27) -
7,177 (4,909)
1,758 1,116
2,178 922
80 140
(8) -
4,008 2,178




MINING AND METALLURGICAL COMPANY NORILSK NICKEL

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007
US Dollars million

Notes

Balance at 31 December 2005

Increase in fair value of available-for-sale investts
Loss on cash flow hedge

Translation of foreign operations

Effect of translation to presentation currency

Net income recognised directly in equity
Profit for the year
Realised gain on disposal of available-for-salegtments

Total recognised income and expense

Dividends 41
Buy back of issued shares

Cancellation of treasury shares

Issuance of ordinary shares from treasury stock

Contribution to share capital of a special purpersity

Net assets distributed to shareholders on dispd$dlyus Group 48

Balance at 31 December 2006

Increase in fair value of available-for-sale inveshts

Effect of change in classification of available-&ale investments
to investments in associates due to increase oérship

Loss on cash flow hedge

Translation of foreign operations

Effect of translation to presentation currency

Net income recognised directly in equity

Profit for the year

Impairment of available-for-sale investments

Other reserves disposed of on disposal of sub&diar

Total recognised income and expense
Dividends 41
Issuance of ordinary shares from treasury stock,

net of direct expenses and attributable income tax
Acquisition of special purpose entities
Net decrease in minority interest due to incred$group’s share

in subsidiaries 5
Minority interest in subsidiaries acquired durihg tyear 5

Balance at 31 December 2007

Equity attributable to shareholders of the parent ompany

Share Share Treasury Other Retained Minority
capital premium shares reserves earnings Total interest Total
9 695 (1,457) 1,438 10,378 11,063 334 11,397
— - - 920 - 920 — 920
- - - (15) - (15) ) (22)
- - - (55) - (55) - (55)
— — — 1,012 — 1,012 32 1,044
9 695 (1,457) 3,300 10,378 12,925 359 13,284
— - - - 5,989 5,989 (24) 5,965
— — — (620 7 (613 — (613
9 695 (1,457) 2,680 16,374 18,301 335 18,636
- - - - (772) (772, — (772,
— - (999) - - (999 — (999
1) (86) 1,457 (15) (1,355) — - -
— 2 - - - 2 ) —
- - - - a7) @a7) 17 —
— — — (103, (3,595) (3,698 (31) (3,729
8 611 (999) 2,562 10,635 12,817 319 13,136
- - — 465 - 465 - 465
- - - (183 - (183 - (183
- - - (16) - (16) 4 12)
— — - (206, - (206, - (206;
— — — 1,201 - 1,201 79 1,280
8 611 (999) 3,823 10,635 14,078 402 14,480
- - - - 5,327 5,327 (51) 5,276
— — - 24 — 24 - 24
- - - (5) 5 - - -
8 611 (999) 3,842 15,967 19,429 351 19,780
- - - - (1,634) (1,634 - (1,634
- 779 999 77 77 1,778 - 1,778
- - - - (70) (70) - (70)
— — — — — — (1,112) (1,112
- - - - - — 3,079 3,079
8 1,390 — 3,765 14,340 19,503 2,318 21,821




MINING AND METALLURGICAL COMPANY NORILSK NICKEL

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007

1. GENERAL
Organisation

Open Joint Stock Company “Mining and Metallurgi€ampany Norilsk Nickel” (the “Company”

or “MMC Norilsk Nickel”) was incorporated in the Bsian Federation on 4 July 1997. The principal
activities of the Company and its subsidiaries {®up” or “Norilsk Nickel Group”) are exploration
extraction, refining and sale of base and precinatals. Further details regarding the nature of
the business and structure of the Group are predémnote 50.

Major production facilities of the Group are loahia Taimyr and Kola Peninsulas of the Russian
Federation, Australia, Botswana, Finland, Southicafand the United States of America. The regidtere
office of the Company is located at 22, Voznesemsgulok, Moscow, Russian Federation.

Shareholding structure of the Group as at 31 Deee2®07 and 2006 was the following:

31 December 2007 31 December 2006
Number of Number of

Shareholders shares % held shares % held
CJSC “ING Bank (Eurasia)” (nominee) 82,644,397 43.75% 80,209,132 44.21%
0JSC AKB “Rosbank” (nominee) 31,999,525 16.94% 46,386,181 25.57%
CJSC “Depository Clearing Company” 26,612,447 14.09% 12,547,555 6.92%
0JSC “VTB Bank” (nominee) 16,152,948 8.55% - -
Non-for-Profit Partnership

“National Depository Centre” 13,843,424 7.33% 10,713,585 5.91%
Dimosenco Holdings Co. Limited — - 6,920,313 3.81%
Pharanco Holdings Co. Limited - - 6,920,313 3.81%
Other, less than 5% 17,664,122 9.34% 17,720,834 9.77%
Total 188,916,863 100.00% 181,417,913 100.00%

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements of the Gimaye been prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS").

Basis of preparation

The entities of the Group maintain their accountigprds in accordance with the laws, accountiry an
reporting regulations of the jurisdictions in whittey are incorporated and registered. Accounting
principles in certain jurisdictions may differ sténstially from those generally accepted under IFRS.
Financial statements of such entities have bearstd] to ensure that the consolidated financial
statements are presented in accordance with IFRS.

The consolidated financial statements of the Gramepprepared on the historical cost basis, exoept f

e  mark-to-market valuation of by-products, in accormiawith IAS 2Inventories; and

° mark-to-market valuation of certain classes oftiitial instruments, in accordance with IAS 39
Financial Instruments. Recognition and Measurement.



MINING AND METALLURGICAL COMPANY NORILSK NICKEL

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007

Standards and interpretations effective in the curent year

In the current year, the Group has adopted allar@wevised International Financial Reporting Stads!
and interpretations issued by International FirelriReporting Interpretation Committee (“IFRIC”) ttae
mandatory for adoption in the annual periods bdggnon or after 1 January 2007. Adoption of these
standards and interpretations did not have angteffethe financial performance or position of @®up
but gave rise to additional disclosures in the olidiated financial statements as follows:

IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Satements (amendment)

This amendment required the Group to provide nealaures to enable users of the consolidateddialan
statements to evaluate the Group’s principal pesieind procedures for managing capital (refer te 40).

IFRS 7Financial Instruments: Disclosures

This standard introduced new disclosures that ensd#rs of the consolidated financial statements to
evaluate the significance of the Group’s finantiatruments and the nature and extent of riskggris
from those financial instruments. Appropriate disdres are presented through out the consolidated
financial statements.

IFRIC Interpretations

The following interpretations issued by IFRIC weféective for the current period: IFRICApplying
the Restatement Approach under 1AS29; IFRIC 8 Scope of IFRS 2; IFRIC 9 Reassessment of Embedded
Derivatives; and IFRIC 1dnterim Financial Reporting and Impairment. The adoption of these

interpretations has not led to any changes in tio&i@s accounting policies or disclosures proviaed
the consolidated financial statements.

Standards and interpretations in issue but not yeadopted

At the date of authorisation of these consolidéitehcial statements, the following Standards and
Interpretations were in issue but not yet effective

Effective for annual periods

Standards and Interpretations beginning on or aftel
IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements (amendment) 1 January 20(
IAS 23Borrowing Costs (amendment) 1 January 20(
IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Satements (amendment due to revision of IFRS 3) 1 July 200
IAS 28 Investments in Associates (amendments due to revision of IFRS 3) 1 July 200
IAS 31 Investmentsin Joint Ventures (amendments due to revision of IFRS 3) 1 Jdy 200¢
IAS 32Financial Instruments: Presentation (amendment) 1 January 20(
IAS 36 Impairment of Assets (amendment) 1 January 20(
IAS 38 Intangible Assets (amendment) 1 January 20(
IAS 39Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement (amendment) 1 January 20(
IAS 40 Investment Property (amendment) 1 January 20(
IAS 41 Agriculture (amendment) 1 January 20(
IFRS 2Share-based Payment (amendment) 1 January 20(
IFRS 3Business Combinations (revised on applying the acquisition method) 1 July 200
IFRS 80perating Segments 1 January 20(
IFRIC 111FRS2: Group and Treasury Share Transactions 1 March 200
IFRIC 12 Service Concession Arrangements 1 January 20(
IFRIC 13Customer Loyalty Programmes 1 July 200
IFRIC 141AS19: The Limit on a Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding Requirements and their Interaction 1 January 20(

The management of the Group anticipates that éileo&bove standards and interpretations will fogisd
in the Group’s consolidated financial statementgsHe respective periods. The impact of adoptioino$e
standards and interpretations on the consolidataddial statements of future periods is currebéing
assessed by management.



MINING AND METALLURGICAL COMPANY NORILSK NICKEL

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of consolidation
Subsidiaries

The consolidated financial statements incorpoiatntial statements of the Company and its subvsdia
from the date that control effectively commencedldine date that control effectively ceased. Cohis
achieved where the Company has power to goverfirthiecial and operating policies of an entity so as
to obtain benefits from its activities.

Minority interest in the net assets (excluding geiill of consolidated subsidiaries is identified
separately from the Group’s equity therein. Minpiitterest includes interest at the date of thgioail
business combination and minority’s share of chang&et assets since the date of the combination.
Losses applicable to minority in excess of mindsifpterest in the subsidiary’s net assets areatkd
against the interest of the Group except to thergxhat a minority has a binding obligation andbe to
make an additional investment to cover the losses.

All intra-group balances, transactions and any alised profits or losses arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full on consolidatio

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group @zges significant influence, but not control, thgbu
participation in financing and operating policy @&ms, in which it normally owns between 20% a8
of the voting equity. Associates are equity accedrior from the date significant influence commehce
until the date that significant influence effectiveeased.

Investments in associates are carried at costidimg goodwill, as adjusted for the Group’s thersh
post-acquisition changes in associate’s retaingdregs and other movements in reserves. The carryin
value of investments in associates is reviewed @galar basis and if any impairment in value has
occurred, it is written down in the period in whitttese circumstances are identified.

The results of associates are equity accountelafeed on their most recent financial statements.
Losses of associates are recorded in the congalifiaancial statements until the investment irhsuc
associates is written down to nil value. Theredftsses are only accounted for to the extent leaGroup
is committed to provide financial support to susbaxiates.

Profits and losses resulting from transactions agtociates are eliminated to the extent of the@@sdanterest
in the relevant associates.

Special purpose entities

Special purpose entities (“SPEs”) are those unkieda that are created to satisfy specific busimessls
of the Group and the Group has the right to theoritgjof the benefits of the SPE, or is exposedgks
associated with the activities of the SPE. SPE€a@amsolidated in the same manner as subsidiaries.

Accounting for acquisitions

Where an investment in a subsidiary or an assasiatade, any excess of the purchase consideat&Em
the fair value of the identifiable assets, includmineral rights, liabilities and contingent liabéds at the
date of acquisition is recognised as goodwill. Gaithdh respect of subsidiaries is disclosed setgdyaand
goodwill relating to associates is included in¢herying value of the investment in associates.d@dlbis
reviewed for impairment at least annually. If impaent has occurred, it is recognised in the codat#d
income statement during the period in which theucirstances are identified and is not subsequevirsed.

10



MINING AND METALLURGICAL COMPANY NORILSK NICKEL

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007

Where an investment in a subsidiary or an assogateade, any excess of the Group’s share in ihe fa
value of acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabifitend contingent liabilities over cost is recogdise
the consolidated income statement immediately.

Where an acquisition is achieved in stages, gobahlculated separately for each exchange tcinsa
based on the cost of each exchange transactiotheamgbpropriate share of the acquirer's net abseisd
on net fair values at the time of each exchangesaetion. When control is achieved, the acquire@dseets
are stated at net fair value at the date of adpnsind any adjustment to fair values relatedréwipusly
held interests is a revaluation, which is accoufideds an adjustment directly in equity.

On acquisition of additional shares of subsidiafiesn minority shareholders, any excess of conatitar
paid over the acquired interest in the carryingigaf net assets at the date of increase in owipearsh
recognised as a goodwill; and any excess of theg@sehare in the carrying value of subsidiaryassets
over cost of acquisition is recognised in the ctidated income statement.

Impairment of goodwiill

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwillliscated to each of the Group’s cash-generatiitg un
expected to benefit from the synergies of the ssitombination. Cash-generating units to whiclilgib
has been allocated are tested for impairment algnoaimore frequently when there is an indicatioat
the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amatithe cash-generating unit is less than its dagry
amount, the impairment loss is allocated as follditst to reduce the carrying amount of any goddwi
allocated to this unit, and then to the other asskthe unit pro-rata on the basis of the carrgngunt
of each asset in the unit. An impairment loss raesagl for goodwill is not reversed in a subseqpenibd.

Functional and presentation currency

The individual financial statements of each Gronfitg are presented in its functional currency.

The Russian Rouble (“RUR”) is the functional cuagf the Company and all foreign subsidiaries of
the Group, except for the following subsidiariesm@bing with a significant degree of autonomy:

Subsidiary Functional currency

Stillwater Mining Company US Dollar

Norilsk Nickel Harjavalta Oy US Dollar

Norilsk Nickel Finland Oy US Dollar

LionOre Mining International Limited and its subisides Australian Dollar and Botswana Pula
Norilsk Nickel Cawse Proprietary Limited Australian Dollar

The presentation currency of the consolidated Girustatements of the Group is US Dollar. UsinddUs
a presentation currency is common practice forajlobning companies. In addition, USD is a moreveaht
presentation currency for international users efdbnsolidated financial statements of the Group.

The translation into presentation currency is masiéollows:

e all assets and liabilities, both monetary and nametary, are translated at closing exchange rates
at the dates of each balance sheet presented,;

e allincome and expenses in each income statemetrizauslated at the average exchange rates for
the periods presented,;

e all resulting exchange differences are recognisea separate component in equity; and

. in the consolidated statement of cash flows, caddnoes at beginning and end of each period
presented are translated at exchange rates agpeative dates. All cash flows are translated at
the average exchange rates for the periods presdResulting exchange differences are presented
as Effect of translation to presentation currency.

11



MINING AND METALLURGICAL COMPANY NORILSK NICKEL

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007

Exchange rates used in preparation of the consetidiancial statements were as follows:

2007 2006
Russian Rouble/US Dollar
31 December 24.55 26.33
Average for the year 25.58 27.19
Botswana Pula/US Dollar
31 December 6.14 n/a
Average for the year 6.11 n/a
Australian Dollar/US Dollar
31 December 1.14 n/a
Average for the year 1.19 n/a

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in currencies other than the entityistional currency (foreign currencies) are reedrdt
the exchange rates prevailing at the date of #eséictions. At each balance sheet date monetatp assl
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies aemslated at the exchange rates prevailing atatembe
sheet date. Non-monetary items carried at histiocizst are translated at the exchange rate preygaili
the date of transaction. Non-monetary items cagaiddir value are translated at the exchangeprateailing
at the date on which the most recent fair valuededsrmined. Exchange differences arising from ghatn
exchange rates are recognised in the consolidatedie statement.

Property, plant and equipment
Mineral rights, mineral resources and ore reserves

Mineral rights, mineral resources and ore resesvesecorded as assets when acquired as parusfreebs
combination and are then amortised over the lifmioe, which is based on estimated proven and pteba
ore reserves. Estimated proven and probable ceeviessreflect the economically recoverable quatiti
which can be legally recovered in the future framowkn mineral deposits and are determined by indigren
professional appraisers.

Mining assets

Mining assets are recorded at cost less accumudatedisation and impairment losses. Mining assets
include the cost of acquiring and developing minpngperties, pre-production expenditure, mine
infrastructure, mining and exploration licenses tr&dpresent value of future decommissioning costs.

Amortisation of mining assets is charged from tateadn which a new mine reaches commercial prastucti
quantities and is included in the cost of produttidining assets are amortised on straight-linesbhager
the lesser of their economic useful lives or tfee dif mine, varying from 2 to 49 years.

Mine development costs

Mine development costs are capitalised and tramesféo mining property, plant and equipment wheewa
mine reaches commercial production quantities.

Capitalised mine development costs comprise expaedi directly related to:

e acquiring mining and exploration licenses;

e developing new mining operations;

e defining further mineralisation in existing ore les and
e expanding the capacity of a mine.

Mine development costs include interest capitaltb@ting the construction period, when financed by
borrowings.
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MINING AND METALLURGICAL COMPANY NORILSK NICKEL

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007

Non-mining assets

Non-mining assets include metallurgical processiagts, buildings, infrastructure, machinery and
equipment and other non-mining assets. Non-minisgta are stated at cost less accumulated defmeciat
and impairment losses. Plant and equipment thaegsextracted ore are located near mining opagatio
and amortised on a straight-line basis over theelesf their economic useful lives or the life ahm

Other non-mining assets are amortised on a striighbasis over their economic useful lives.

Depreciation is calculated over the following eamimuseful lives:

e plant, buildings and infrastructure 10 - 50 years
° machinery and equipment 4 —11 years
e other non-mining assets 5-10 years

Capital construction-in-progress

Capital construction-in-progress comprises costxtly related to construction of buildings, praiag
plant, infrastructure, machinery and equipmentt @s® includes finance charges capitalised during
the construction periods where such costs aredethhy borrowings. Depreciation of these assets
commences when the assets are put into production.

Intangible assets, excluding goodwill

Intangible assets are recorded at cost less acatedwdmortisation and impairment losses. Intangiséets
mainly include patents and licenses, long-term @@able contracts and software. Amortisation is ghdr
on a straight-line basis over the following econpugeful lives of these assets:

e  Activox technology patent indefinite useful life
e patents and licenses, except for Activox technology 2 —-10years
. long-term favourable contracts 7 years
. software 2 —-10years

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets, exclding goodwill

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviewsatingirng amounts of its tangible and intangible tste
determine whether there is any indication thateéhassets have suffered an impairment loss. If adly s
indication exists, the recoverable amount of tleetis estimated in order to determine the extent o
the impairment loss (if any). Where it is not pbfsito estimate the recoverable amount of an iddaii
asset, the Group estimates the recoverable ambtim oash-generating unit to which the asset lggon

The recoverable amount is the higher of fair védge cost to sell and value-in-use. In assessinga-use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounteldio present value using a pre-tax discount rateréflects
current market assessments of the time value oegnand the risks specific to the asset, for which
the estimates of the future cash flows have not lbeiusted. If the recoverable amount of an asset
(or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be lleas its carrying amount, the carrying amount of

the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reducets te¢overable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised in the consolidated income statementitietely.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reversesatinging amount of the asset (or cash-generatiity u
is increased to the revised estimate of its re@eramount, but only to the extent that the inseda
carrying amount does not exceed the original aagrgimount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior periodeeversal of an impairment loss is recognised in

the consolidated income statement immediately.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007

Research and exploration expenditure

Research and exploration expenditure, includingplygsical, topographical, geological and similarcypf
expenditure, is expensed in the period in whighiiicurred, unless it is deemed that such expemditill
lead to an economically viable capital projectthiis case the expenditure is capitalised and asedrover
the life of mine, when a mine reaches commerciadipction quantities.

Research and exploration expenditure written-ofblgedevelopment and construction starts is not
subsequently capitalised, even if a commercialadisty subsequently occurs.

Inventories
Refined metals

Joint products, i.e. nickel, copper, palladiumtiplam and gold, are measured at the lower of n&t co
of production or net realisable value. The net cbgtroduction of joint products is determined atsit
production cost less net revenue from sales ofrbgiyts and valuation of by-product inventoriesand,
allocated to each joint product in the ratio ofitltentribution to total amount of sales.

Production costs include on-mine and concentratirggs, smelting costs, treatment and refining costs
other cash costs and amortisation and deprecietioperating assets.

By-products, i.e. cobalt, ruthenium, rhodium, i, silver and other minor metals, are measureeiat
realisable value, through a mark-to-market valumatio

Work-in-process
Work-in-process is valued at net cost of productiased on the percentage of completion method.
Stores and materials

Stores and materials consist of consumable stockarg valued at the weighted average cost lessaice
for obsolete and slow-moving items.

Financial assets

Financial assets are recognised when the Groupdtasne a party to the contractual arrangement of
the instrument and are initially measured at falug, plus transaction costs, except for thosediah
assets classified as at fair value through profibss, which are initially measured at fair value.

Financial assets are classified into the follovspgcified categories:

e financial assets at fair value through profit adp
. held-to-maturity investments;

. available-for-sale financial assets; and

. loans and receivables.

The classification depends on the nature and parpbthe financial assets and is determined dirtte of
initial recognition.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calingj the amortised cost of a financial asset dnd o
allocating interest income over the relevant peridte effective interest rate is the rate that #yac
discounts estimated future cash receipts (inclutfargsaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial assetwere appropriate, a shorter period.

Income is recognised on an effective interest Hasidebt securities other that those financiabtsss
designated as at fair value through profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007

Financial assets at fair value through profit or ks

Financial assets are classified as at fair valuautih profit or loss where the financial asseittsee held for
trading or it is designated as at fair value thropgpfit or loss.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading

. it has been acquired principally for the purposeedling in the near future; or

. it is a part of an identified portfolio of finanti@struments that the Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of short-term profiiatg or

. it is a derivative that is not designated and eiffecas a hedging instrument.

Financial assets at fair value through profit aslare stated at fair value, with any resultart galoss
recognised in the consolidated income statememtn€hgain or loss recognised in the consolidatechne
statement incorporates any dividend or interestezhon the financial asset.

Held-to-maturity investments

Promissory notes and debentures with fixed or deéteble payments and fixed maturity dates that
the Group has the positive intent and ability ttdho maturity other than loans and receivables are
classified as held-to-maturity investments. Helgaturity investments are recorded at amortiset cos
using the effective interest method less any alf@&dor impairment.

Amortisation of discount or premium on the acqigsitof a held-to-maturity investment is recogniged
interest income over the term of the investmentd e maturity investments are included in non-eatr
assets, unless they mature within twelve monttiseobalance sheet date.

Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets mainly includeestments in listed and unlisted shares.

Listed shares held by the Group that are tradedh iactive market are stated at their market value.
Gains and losses arising from changes in fair vateeecognised directly in equity in the investteen
revaluation reserve with the exception of impairtdesses, interest calculated using the effectiterést
method and foreign exchange gains and losses optargrassets, which are recognised directly in
the consolidated income statement. Where the imestis disposed of or is determined to be impaired
the cumulative gain or loss previously recognisethé investment revaluation reserve is included in
the consolidated income statement for the period.

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instrumears recognised in the consolidated income statement
when the Group’s right to receive the dividendssigblished.

Investments in unlisted shares that do not haweted market price in an active market and whase fa
value cannot be reliably measured are recordedaagement’s estimate of fair value.

Loans and receivables

Trade receivables, loans, and other receivabl¢hiéve fixed or determinable payments that arenoted
in an active market are classified as loans arelvables. Loans and receivables are measured atisedo
cost using the effective interest method, lessiapairment. Interest income is recognised by apiglyi
the effective interest rate, except for short-teegeivables when the recognition of interest wdidd
immaterial.
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Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at fair valwigh profit or loss, are assessed for indicatbimpairment
at each balance sheet date. Financial assets ga@echwhere there is objective evidence that,raswt of
one or more events that occurred after the ingiegnition of the financial asset, the estimategdré cash
flows of the investment have been impacted.

For unlisted shares classified as available-fag;sakignificant or prolonged decline in the failue of
the security below its cost is considered to beahje evidence of impairment.

For certain categories of financial asset, sudheae receivables, assets that are assessedb®minpaired
individually are subsequently assessed for impaitroe a collective basis. Objective evidence ofdmpent
for a portfolio of receivables could include theoGp's past experience of collecting payments, arease

in the number of delayed payments as well as obbe\changes in economic conditions that correlate
with defaults on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised costatheunt of the impairment is the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present vélestimmated future cash flows, discounted at tharftial
asset’s original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduzy the impairment loss directly for all finaricia
assets with the exception of trade receivablesrevtie carrying amount is reduced through the fise o
an allowance for impairment. When a trade rece&vébtonsidered uncollectible, it is written ofbaust

the allowance. Subsequent recoveries of amounttopsty written off are credited against the allowe.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowanceeregnised in the consolidated income statement.

With the exception of available-for-sale equitytinments, if, in a subsequent period, the amount of

the impairment loss decreases and the decrease calated objectively to an event occurring after

the impairment was recognised, the previously neised impairment loss is reversed through the diolaged
income statement to the extent that the carryinguasnof the investment at the date the impairment i
reversed does not exceed what the amortised codtl Wwave been had the impairment not been recagjnise

When a decline in fair value of an available-folesavestment has been recognised directly in gqunid
there is objective evidence that investment is inepathe cumulative loss that had been recogrisedtly
in equity is removed from equity and recognisethinconsolidated income statement even though
the investment has not been derecognised. Impdiloeses previously recognised through consolidated
income statement are not reversed. Any increafsgrimalue subsequent to an impairment loss isgeised
directly in equity.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only vilieigontractual rights to the cash flows from thgea
expire; or it transfers the financial asset andstuttially all the risks and rewards of ownersHithe asset
to another entity. If the Group neither transfessnetains substantially all the risks and rewarfdswvnership
and continues to control the transferred asseGtoep recognises its retained interest in thet aswk
an associated liability for amounts it may havedg. If the Group retains substantially all thdsisnd
rewards of ownership of a transferred financiakgsthe Group continues to recognise the finamsaét
and also recognises a collateralised borrowingfi@proceeds received.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities, including borrowings, aretially measured at fair value, net of transactiosts and
subsequently measured at amortised cost usindféotive interest method.
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Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of cating the amortised cost of a financial liabilitydeof
allocating interest expense over the relevant pgefibe effective interest rate is the rate thatdya
discounts estimated future cash payments throwgbxpected life of the financial liability, or, wige
appropriate, a shorter period.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities whemd only when, the Group’s obligations are disobdyg
cancelled or they expire.

Derivative financial instruments

The Group uses derivative financial instrumentsémage its exposure to the risk of changes in metas.

Derivative financial instruments are initially megsd at fair value on the contract date, and areeasured
to fair value at subsequent reporting dates. Theltiag gain or loss is recognised in the constdéida
income statement immediately unless the derivasivkesignated as a cash flow hedge.

The effective portion of changes in the fair vatifigerivative financial instruments that are deatgd as
cash flow hedges is recognised directly in eqibe ineffective portion of cash flow hedges is graeed
in the consolidated income statement. Amounts tifén equity are recycled in the consolidated ineo
statement in the periods when the hedged itentagrésed in the consolidated income statement.
However, when the forecast transaction that is &edgsults in the recognition of a non-financial
asset or a non-financial liability, the gains amskkes previously deferred in equity are transfefroed
equity and included in the initial measurementef ¢ost of the asset or liability.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the Groupke=/the hedging relationship, the hedging instrime
expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised, donger qualifies for hedge accounting. Any cumutagain
or loss deferred in equity at that time remainequity and is recognised when the forecast traimsaist
ultimately recognised in the consolidated incoragestent. When a forecast transaction is no longesated

to occur, the cumulative gain or loss that wasrdefien equity is recognised immediately in thesmidated
income statement.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balarastsdeposits and highly liquid investments with
maturities of three months or less, which are igadinvertible to known amounts of cash and argestib
to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Employee benefits

Remuneration to employees in respect of servigedered during a reporting period is recognised as
an expense in that reporting period.

Defined contribution plans
The Group contributes to the following major defir@ntribution plans:

. Pension Fund of the Russian Federation;
e  Corporate pension option program; and
e  Stillwater Mining Company savings plan.

The only obligation of the Group with respect tesh and other defined contribution plans is to make

the specified contributions in the period in whibRy arise. These contributions are recognised in
the consolidated income statement when employegsrbadered services entitling them to the continbu
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Defined benefit plans

The Group operates a number of funded defined bigriafis for its employees. At management’s
discretion and within the established annual bigjdleé Group admits employees, who have met certain
criteria, into one of the following retirement béhplans:

. Lifelong professional pension plan, whereby a retired employee receives a monthlyalhwe equal
to 200% of the Russian Federation state pensiatéorest of his/her life; or

e Joint corporate pension plan, whereby a retired employee receives a monthly a@ime equal
to 1/150th of the total Starting and Counter cafitathe rest of his/her life. Starting capital is
determined on an individual basis taking into act@eniority, salary level, etc. Counter capital
consists of a contribution funded by the Group amed to 3% of salaries paid to an employee
during the period of participation in the plan.

The Group'’s liability recognised in the consolidhtelance sheet in respect of defined benefit plans
represent the present value of the defined beutdfgation at the balance sheet date less thedhie of
the plans assets, together with adjustments f@cognised actuarial gains or losses and past sarwsts.
The defined benefit obligation is calculated ugimg projected unit credit method.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised as inoomegpense when the cumulative unrecognised aaituar
gains or losses for each individual plan exceed @D&be higher of defined benefit obligation and fair
value of plans assets. The excess of cumulativegat gains or losses over the 10% of the higfier o
defined benefit obligation and the fair value ains assets are recognised over the expected average
remaining working lives of the employees partidipgtn the plans.

Past service cost is recognised immediately icdimsolidated income statement to the extent tediehefits
are already vested, and otherwise amortised cstrifight-line basis over the average period umtildenefit
becomes vested.

Where the estimation results in a benefit to theupBrasset recognised is limited to the net totalnyf
unrecognised actuarial losses and past service andtpresent value of any future refunds fronptae
or reductions in the future contribution to therpga

Income tax
Income tax expense represents the sum of the taently payable and deferred tax.

Income tax is recognised as an expense or incorie inonsolidated income statement, except when it
relates to items recognised directly in equitywhich case the tax is also recognised directlyquntsg, or
where they arise from the initial accounting fdsusiness combination.

In the case of a business combination, the taxtgaken into account in calculating goodwill or
determining the excess of the acquirer’s interegié net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiaddsets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities over costtbe business combination.

Current tax

Current tax is based on taxable profit for the y&axable profit differs from profit for the yeas a
reported in the consolidated income statement lsedaexcludes items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and it furé»asiudes items that are never taxable or dedectibl
The Group'’s liability for current tax is calculatading tax rates that have been enacted or suivsignt
enacted by the balance sheet date.
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Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on differences betwkercarrying amounts of assets and liabilities in

the consolidated balance sheet and the corresgptadirtbases used in the computation of taxablétprof
and are accounted for using the balance sheditliabethod. Deferred tax liabilities are recogiger all
taxable temporary differences, and deferred teatsisse recognised for all deductible temporarfedihces
to the extent that it is probable that taxableifmafill be available against which those deduetiieimporary
differences can be utilised. Such assets anditiabibre not recognised if the temporary diffeeendses
from goodwill or from the initial recognition (othéhan in a business combination) of other assels a
liabilities in a transaction that affects neithiee taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxakel@porary differences associated with investmients
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able ttrabtine reversal of the temporary difference drid i
probable that the temporary difference will noteese in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences asged with such investments and interests are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable thete will be sufficient taxable profits against atio
utilise the benefits of the temporary differenced they are expected to reverse in the foreseéathie.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is wadeat each balance sheet date and reduced totém: e
that it is no longer probable that sufficient tabegtrofits will be available to allow all or part the asset to
be recovered.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities andtageflects the tax consequences that would fdilom
the manner in which the Group expects, at the tieygodate, to recover or settle the carrying amadiits
assets and liabilities. Deferred tax assets abdities are offset when there is a legally enfaide right

to set off current tax assets against currentidgdiities and when they relate to income taxefelbby

the same taxation authority and the Group intendettle its current tax assets and liabilitiea ot basis.

Government grants

Government grants related to assets are deductedtire cost of these assets in arriving at theiytey
value.

Revenue recognition
Metal sales revenue

Revenue from metal sales is recognised when tkearsd rewards of ownership are transferred toulyer
and represents invoiced value of all joint prodgbipped to customers, net of value-added tax. iRegsfrom
the sale of by-products are netted-off againstymrtich costs.

Revenue from contracts that are entered into antihcee to meet the Group’s expected sale requiresnen
designated for that purpose at their inception,amedexpected to be settled by physical delivesy, a
recognised in the consolidated financial statemas@nd when they are delivered.

Sales of certain metals are provisionally pricathghat the price is not settled until a predeteetifuture
date based on the market price at that time. Reventhese sales is initially recognised at theeatimarket
price. Provisionally priced metal sales are matketdarket at each reporting date using the fonpeoe for
the period equivalent to that outlined in the cacttrThis mark to market adjustment is recordedwenue.
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Other revenue

Revenue from sale of goods, other than metalec@ynised when significant risks and rewards ofevaltip
are transferred to the buyer in accordance witlsliigping terms specified in the sales agreements.

Revenue from service contracts are recognised tileeservices are rendered and the outcome cafidigyre
measured.

The Group provides the following principal typesefvices:

e supply of electricity and heat energy; and
e  transportation services.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has hdeganstructive obligations as a result of a pasnt
for which it is probable that an outflow of econerhienefits will be required to settle the obligatpand
the amount of the obligations can be reliably estéu.

The amount recognised as a provision is the bastate of the consideration required to settleptesent
obligation at the balance sheet date, taking iotoant the risks and uncertainties surroundinggahitin.
Where a provision is measured using the cash fistimnated to settle the present obligation, iteyaay
amount is the present value of those cash flows.

Interest on borrowings

Interest on borrowings relating to major qualifyicapital projects under construction is capitalised
during the construction period in which they auimed. Once a qualifying capital project has Heén
commissioned, the associated interest is recordéeiconsolidated income statement as and wharréac

Interest relating to operating activities is expehahen incurred.
Leases

Leases under which the Group assumes substaiatighe risks and rewards of ownership are clasbifis
finance leases. Assets subject to finance leasespitalised as property, plant and equipmethiegioiver of
fair value or present value of future minimum lepagments at the date of acquisition, with theteeléease
obligation recognised at the same value. Assetsuraler finance leases are depreciated over tteinaed
economic useful lives or over the term of the ledshorter. If there is reasonable certainty thatlessee
will obtain ownership at the end of the lease tetm,period of expected use is useful life of theeh

Finance lease payments are allocated using thetieffénterest rate method, between the leasedamanst,
which is included in finance costs, and the capéphyment, which reduces the related lease oioligtd
the lessor.

Leases where the lessor retains substantiallj@lisks and benefits of ownership of the assetlassified
as operating leases. Operating lease paymente@rgnised as an expense in the consolidated income
statement on a straight-line basis over the lezrse. t

Dividends

Dividends payable and related taxation thereomearegnised in the period in which they have been
declared and become legally payable.

Accumulated profits legally distributable are basadhe amounts available for distribution in adeorce
with the applicable legislation and as reflectethm statutory financial statements of the indigidentities
of the Group. These amounts may differ signifigafrttm the amounts calculated on the basis of IFRS.
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Environmental obligations
Environmental obligations include decommissioning &and restoration costs.

Future decommissioning costs, discounted to neiepitevalue, are capitalised and the corresponding
decommissioning obligations raised as soon asdhstiictive obligation to incur such costs arises$ a
the future decommissioning cost can be reliablyreged. Decommissioning assets are depleted over
the life of mine. The unwinding of the decommisgignobligations is included in the consolidatedime
statement as finance costs. Decommissioning oldigaare periodically reviewed in light of currdgtvs
and regulations, and adjustments made as necessary.

Provision for land restoration, representing th& of restoring land damage after the commenceaient
commercial production, is estimated at net pregalne of the expenditures expected to settle thgation.
Change in provision and unwinding of discount ardleestoration are recognised to the consolidatszhie
statement and included in cost of production.

Ongoing rehabilitation costs are expensed wherriadu
Assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are otbasi held for sale if their carrying amount wélllecovered
through a sale transaction rather than throughirmaing use. This condition is regarded as met orign
sale is highly probable within one year from théedaf classification and the asset or disposal gisu
available for immediate sale in its present condititnd management has committed to the sale.

Non-current assets and disposal groups classiiéebld for sale are measured at the lower of feirious
carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.

Discontinued operations

Discontinued operations are disclosed when a coemarf the Group either has been disposed of during
the reporting period, or is classified as heldsfale at the balance sheet date. This conditioegarded as
met only when the disposal is highly probable witbhe year from the date of classification.

Comparative information related to the discontinapdrations is amended in the consolidated income
statement for the prior period.

Assets and liabilities of a disposal group arequtsd in the balance sheet separately from otletsaand
liabilities. Comparative information related to eimtinued operations is not amended in the coreseléd
balance sheet for the prior period.

Segmental information

The Group’s primary segment reporting format isrimss segments. A business segment is a groupeatfas
and operations engaged in providing products efcgsrthat are subject to risks and returns tleatlifierent
to those of other business segments. The Groupsprbusiness segments are:

. mining and metallurgy;

e energy and utilities;

e transport and logistics; and
e  oOther.

The business segment “other” mainly includes estitingaged in research activities, maintenanceepad
services and other.
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The Group’s secondary segment reporting formatagphic segments which are based on the geographi
location of the Group’s operations. The Group nyaiplerates in:

. Russian Federation;
. North America;
. Australia;

. Africa;
. Europe; and
. Asia.

3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCE OF ES TIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

Preparation of the consolidated financial statesyanaccordance with IFRS requires the Group’s
management to make estimates and assumptiondfetttae reported amounts of assets and liakslitie
and disclosure of contingent assets and liabildiethe date of the consolidated financial statémen
and the reported amounts of revenues and expeunsag the reporting period. The determination of
estimates requires judgments which are based toribé experience, current and expected economic
conditions, and all other available informationtéal results could differ from those estimates.

The most significant areas requiring the use ofagament estimates and assumptions relate to:

° useful economic lives of property, plant and equeptn

. impairment of assets;

° impairment of goodwill;

e allowances for doubtful debts, obsolete and slowimpraw materials and spare parts;
e environmental obligations;

. defined benefit plans; and

e tax matters.

Useful economic lives of property, plant and equipmnt

The Group’s mining assets, classified within propegslant and equipment, are amortised on a strdiiggh
basis over the lesser of their economic usefuslarethe life of mine. When determining life of mjn
assumptions that were valid at the time of estimnatinay change when new information becomes alailab

The factors that could affect the estimation oflifeeof mine include the following:

e changes in proven and probable ore reserves;
e the grade of mineral reserves varying significafrtyn time to time;

e differences between actual commodity prices andneodity price assumptions used in
the estimation and classification of ore reserves;

. unforeseen operational issues at mine sites; and

e changes in capital, operating, mining, processimjraclamation costs, discount rates and foreign
exchange rates could possibly adversely affeceto@momic viability of ore reserves.

Any of these changes could affect prospective asadiin of mining assets and their carrying value.
Useful economic lives of non-mining property, pland equipment is reviewed by management
periodically. The review is based on the curremidition of the assets and the estimated perioshguri
which they will continue to bring economic benédithe Group.
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Impairment of assets, excluding goodwiill

The Group reviews the carrying amounts of its thlegand intangible assets excluding goodwill to
determine whether there is any indication thatetessets are impaired. In making the assessment

for impairment, assets that do not generate indigrgrcash flows are allocated to an appropriate
cash-generating unit. Management necessarily agmigudgment in allocating assets that do noegsns
independent cash flows to appropriate cash-gengratiits, and also in estimating the timing andigadf
the underlying cash flows within the value-in-usdcalation. Subsequent changes to the cash-gemgrati
unit allocation or to the timing of cash flows cdunpact the carrying value of the respective asset

Impairment of goodwiill

Assessment whether goodwill is impaired requiresstimation of value-in-use of the cash-generating
unit to which goodwill is allocated. The value-isaucalculations require management to estimate

the future cash flows expected to arise from ttsh-g@enerating unit and a suitable discount to taleu
present value. Details of impairment loss calcatairelated to mining and non-mining business wfits
the Group is presented in note 24.

Allowances

The Group creates allowances for doubtful deb&tount for estimated losses resulting from thbilita

of customers to make the required payments. A% &e®@ember 2007, the allowance for doubtful debts
amounted to USD 52 million (2006: USD 71 millioMyhen evaluating the adequacy of an allowance

for doubtful debts, management bases its estinmteiwent overall economic conditions, ageing of

the accounts receivable balances, historical wiftexperience, customer creditworthiness and chaimg
payment terms. Changes in the economy, industspexific customer conditions may require adjustsient
to the allowance for doubtful debts recorded indbesolidated financial statements.

The Group also creates an allowance for obsoletelamw-moving raw materials and spare parts.

As at 31 December 2007, the allowance for obsaleteslow-moving items amounted to USD 25 million
(2006: USD 30 million). In addition, certain finisth goods of the Group are carried at net realisaties.
Estimates of net realisable value of inventoriestarsed on the most reliable evidence availatiteedtme
the estimates are made. These estimates takeoims@leration fluctuations of price or cost directiating

to events occurring subsequent to the balance gdaéeto the extent that such events confirm caoit
existing at the end of the period.

Environmental obligations

The Group’s mining and exploration activities anbjsct to various environmental laws and regulaion
The Group estimates environmental obligations basadanagement’s understanding of the current legal
requirements in the various jurisdictions in whitohperates, terms of the license agreements aewchally
generated engineering estimates. Provision is nimdesd on net present values, for decommissiomidg a
land restoration costs as soon as the obligatisesarActual costs incurred in future periods califtér
materially from the amounts provided. Additionafiyture changes to environmental laws and reguistio
life of mine estimates and discount rates couldcafthe carrying amount of this provision.

Defined benefit plans

The most significant assumptions used in estimatfatefined benefit plans are the expected ratetafn
on plan assets, the discount rate, future salargases, state pensions growth rate and mortafitynaptions.

The overall expected rate of return on pensiongéamsets is calculated based on the expecteddomg-t
investment returns for each category of assets.

The present value of the benefits is determinedigounting the estimated future cash outflowsgisin
interest rates of high-quality government bonds ltlage terms to maturity approximating to the teais
the related pension obligations.

Estimation of future salary levels takes into actquojected levels of inflation and seniority @frponnel.

23



MINING AND METALLURGICAL COMPANY NORILSK NICKEL

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerorisdictions. Significant judgment is required in
determining the worldwide provision for income taxdie to the complexity of legislation. There asngn
transactions and calculations for which the ultenaix determination is uncertain. The Group recsemi
liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues basacestimates of whether additional taxes will be.du
Where the final tax outcome of these matters feidiht from the amounts that were initially recatde
such differences will impact the income tax anceded tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.

Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each balaeet date and reduced to the extent that it is mgeo
probable that sufficient taxable income will be italkzle to allow all or part of the deferred taxetst®

be utilised. The estimation of that probabilitylumes judgments based on the expected performance.
Various factors are considered to assess the pitiypaib the future utilisation of deferred tax ass,
including past operating results, operational plaxpiration of tax losses carried forward, and tax
planning strategies. If actual results differ frtmse estimates or if these estimates must betadjus
future periods, the financial position, resultopgrations and cash flows may be negatively affecte
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4.

RECLASSIFICATIONS

Certain comparative information, presented in thesolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2006, has been reclassified. Reclzatsifins were based upon management’s decision to
enhance disclosure of the Group’s financial pasiéind results of operations through separate een

of certain types of income and expenses, and aasdtkabilities on the face of the consolidatecbime

statement and consolidated balance sheet.

The effect of the reclassifications is summariseidww:

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

Other sales

Cost of other sales

Selling and distribution expenses

General and administrative expenses
Selling, general and administrative expenses
Other net operating expenses

Loss from investments

Finance costs

Foreign exchange gain, net

Share of losses of associates

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Goodwill

Intangible assets

Other taxes receivable

Other non-current assets

Current assets

Trade and other receivables
Advances paid and prepaid expenses
Income tax receivable

Other taxes receivable

Other current assets

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables
Advances received
Income tax payable
Other taxes payable

Capital and reserves

Other reserves

Investments revaluation reserve
Hedging reserve

Translation reserve

25

After Before
reclassifications reclassifications Difference
373 - 373
(345) - (345)
(536) - (536)
(554) — (554)
- (1,090 1,090
(267) (278) 11
(199) (226, 27
(79) (21) (58)
25 - 25
(33) - (33)
8,075 8,134 (59)
25 — 25
107 73 34
44 - 44
— 44 (44)
697 745 (48)
153 - 153
27 - 27
575 - 575
— 707 (707)
370 421 (51)
51 — 51
244 - 244
149 393 (244)
2,562 - 2,562
— 997 (997)
— (15) 15
- 1,580 (1,580)
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5. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

Acquisition of controlling interest in subsidiaries

Cost of
Subsidiaries acquired Principal activity Date of acquisition Ownership acquisition
2007
OMG Harjavalta Nickel Oy and
OMG Cawse Proprietary Limited Mining and metallurgy 1 March 2007 100.0% 356
LionOre Mining International Limited Mining and metallurgy 28 June 2007 90.7% 5,252
0JSC “Third Generation Company of Electricity production
the Wholesale Electricity Market” and distribution 7 August 2007 54.1% 612
LLC “Geokomp” Drilling services 28 August 2007 100.0% 1
LLC “Pervaya Milya” Telecommunication 16 November 2007 75.0% 2
LLC “Direktsiya Proekta Metally
Zabaikalya” Construction 27 December 2007 100.0% -
6,223
2006
LLC “Nortrans” Transportation 15 June 2006 100.0% 1
LLC “Astron” Telecommunication 21 July 2006 71.0% 1
LLC “Astron-S” Telecommunication 21 July 2006 71.0% 1
0OJSC “Taimyrenergo” Rental of equipment 31 July 2006 100.0% 271
LLC “Zapolyarnyi Torgovyi Alians”  Retall 1 December 2006 100.0% —
274

Acquisitions in 2007
OMG Harjavalta Nickel Oy and OMG Cawse Proprietaymited

On 1 March 2007, the Group acquired 100% of thénargt shares of OMG Harjavalta Nickel Oy
(“OMG Harjavalta™), a company engaged in nickeimfg operations in Finland, and OMG Cawse
Proprietary Limited (“*OMG Cawse”), a company engagenickel mining and processing operations in
Australia, for a total consideration of USD 356lio.

At the date of acquisition the fair value of idéatile assets and liabilities of OMG Harjavalta and
OMG Cawse were as follows:

Fair value

ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment 235
Intangible assets 1
Inventories 230
Trade and other receivables 194
Advances paid and prepaid expenses 51
Other financial assets 40
Cash and cash equivalents 7

758
LIABILITIES
Employee benefit obligations 5
Environmental obligations 4
Deferred tax liabilities 63
Trade and other payables 128
Income tax payable 36
Other taxes payable 9

245
Group’s share of net assets acquired 513
Less: Excess of the Group’s share in the fair vafueet assets acquired over the cost of acquisitio (157
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Fair value

Total cost of acquisition 356
Consideration per agreement (348
Direct transaction costs (8)
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition

Consideration and direct transaction costs pa@gh (356

Cash and cash equivalents acquired 7
Net cash outflow on acquisition (349

At the date of acquisition, OMG Harjavalta and OM@wse did not prepare financial statements in
accordance with IFRS. Thus it was not practicablégtermine the carrying amounts of the acquired
assets and liabilities in accordance with IFRS iiaiely before the acquisition, and this informatis
not presented in the Group’s consolidated finargt@tements.

OMG Harjavalta and OMG Cawse contributed USD 92Uiani of revenue and USD 221 million of
profit before tax from the date of acquisition tbBecember 2007.

LionOre Mining International Limited
On 28 June 2007, the Group acquired 90.7% of tliegrehares of LionOre Mining International Limited
(“LionQOre”), an international nickel producer witiperations in Australia and Botswana, for a cash

consideration of USD 5,252 million.

At the date of acquisition the fair value of idéiable assets and liabilities of LionOre were dbfos:

Fair value
ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment 4,490
Intangible assets 706
Investments in associates 580
Deferred tax asset 167
Inventories 178
Trade and other receivables 252
Advances paid and prepaid expenses 3
Other financial assets 38
Cash and cash equivalents 438
6,852
LIABILITIES
Borrowings 833
Employee benefit obligations 10
Environmental obligations 91
Derivative financial liabilities 80
Deferred tax liabilities 1,512
Trade and other payables 144
Income tax payable 61
2,731
Net assets at the date of acquisition 4,121
Less: Net assets attributable to minority sharedrsid (870
Add: Decrease in minority interest due to increafsimterest in the subsidiary 239
Group’s share of net assets acquired 3,490
Add: Goodwill arising on acquisition 2,001
Less: Revaluation surplus representing changeiirvédue of MPI net assets from the date of initial
acquisition by the Group of 20% interest in MPIféreto note 26) to the date when control was olegin (43)
Less: Pre-acquisition investment in MPI (refer tden26) (196,
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Fair value
Total cost of acquisition 5,252
Consideration per public offer (5,230
Direct transaction costs (22)
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition
Consideration and direct transaction costs pa@hgh (5,252
Cash and cash equivalents acquired 438
Net cash outflow on acquisition (4,814

At the date of acquisition, LionOre did not prepfinancial statements in accordance with IFRS.
Thus it was not practicable to determine the cag@mounts of the acquired assets and liabilities i
accordance with IFRS immediately before the actiaisiand this information was not presented in
the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

In July-August 2007, the Group acquired an additi®@3% interest in LionOre for a cash consideratit
USD 543 million through a number of transactionthwminority shareholders, increasing its ownership
in this company to 100%. As a result of this tratisa, the Group recognised a decrease in netsasset
attributable to minority shareholders of USD 334liam, and a goodwill of USD 209 million.

In July-August 2007, the holders of LionOre conimet notes exercised their right to convert notgs i
23.5 million common shares. All these shares wegeliged by the Group for a cash consideration of
USD 613 million. In the consolidated financial staents for the year ended 31 December 2007 adéguisit
of additional shares was accounted for as a sedtieof borrowings acquired on the initial acqudsitiof
controlling interest in LionOre.

In August 2007, in accordance with the terms oflstaption and share compensation plan LionOre issue
additional 1.7 million shares and granted themeip émployees and directors. In August 2007, theiro
acquired all those shares for a cash consideratiofsD 45 million. In the consolidated financisht&ments
for the year ended 31 December 2007 acquisiti@uditional shares was accounted for as a settlenfient
stock option liabilities acquired on the initialgadsition of controlling interest in LionOre.

LionOre contributed USD 407 million of revenue as@D 907 million of loss before tax from the date of
acquisition to 31 December 2007.

Goodwill that arose on acquisition of LionOre waisnarily attributable to the expected business gyyne

0JSC “Third Generation Company of the Wholesale Etgcity Market”

During July-August 2007, the Group acquired antamthl 7.2% interest in OJSC “Third Generation
Company of the Wholesale Electricity Market” (“OGX}, a company engaged in generation and sale of
electricity and heat energy in Central, North-W8&dberia and Urals regions of the Russian Federain

a cash consideration of USD 612 million, increasiagwnership in the company to 54.1%. Prior ie th
transaction, investment in OGK-3 was classifiethasstment in associate (refer to note 26).

At the date of acquisition the fair value of idéatile assets and liabilities of OGK-3 were asdiaft:

Fair value

ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment 2,111
Intangible assets 2
Inventories 86
Trade and other receivables 121
Advances paid and prepaid expenses 24
Other financial assets 1,684
Cash and cash equivalents 1,424
5,452

28



MINING AND METALLURGICAL COMPANY NORILSK NICKEL

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007
US Dollars million

LIABILITIES
Borrowings 141
Employee benefit obligations 21
Deferred tax liabilities 376
Trade and other payables 83
Advances received 6
Income tax payable 7
Other taxes payable 7
641
Net assets at the date of acquisition 4,811
Less: Net assets attributable to minority sharedrsid (2,209
Group’s share of net assets acquired 2,602
Add: Goodwill arising on acquisition 1,646
Less: Pre-acquisition investment in OGK-3 (refentte 26) (3,639
Total cost of acquisition 612
Consideration per public offer (611,
Direct transaction costs (1)
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition
Consideration and direct transaction costs paithsh (612
Cash and cash equivalents acquired 1,424
Net cash inflow on acquisition 812

Acquisition of controlling interest in OGK-3 washaeved in stages. Cost of acquisition and fair eaiti
OGK-3's identifiable assets, liabilities and cogémt liabilities and goodwill that arose at eaclgstare
presented in the table below:

Fair value of Cost of
Date of transaction Ownership net assets acquisition Goodwill
26 December 2006 14.60% 1,545 400 174
23 March 2007 0.26% 1,571 21 17
26 March 2007 32.04% 4,682 3,119 1,157
7 August 2007 7.20% 4,812 612 266
Effect of translation to presentation currency n/a n/a 84 32
Total 54.10% n/a 4,236 1,646

At the date of acquisition of controlling interéstthe Group, OGK-3 did not prepare financial steats
in accordance with IFRS. Thus it was not practiedbldetermine the carrying amounts of the acquired
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities stardance with IFRS immediately before the acdaisit
and this information was not presented in thessaatated financial statements.

In August-September 2007, the Group acquired aitiaddl 8,676 million shares of OGK-3 for a cash
consideration of USD 929 million, increasing itsr@xship to 65.2%. As a result of this transaction,
the Group recognised a decrease in net assetsitdtsle to minority interest in the amount of

USD 529 million and increase in goodwill in the ambof USD 400 million.

OGK-3 contributed USD 626 million of revenue andDJ&3 million of profit before tax from the date of
acquisition of controlling interest to 31 DecemB@07.

The goodwill that arose on the acquisition relatetthe premium paid for control over OGK-3.
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0JSC “Norilsko-Taimyrskaya Energeticheskaya Kompgaf

On 7 May 2007, the Group acquired an additional 49#rest in OJSC “Norilsko-Taimyrskaya
Energeticheskaya Kompaniya” (‘NTEK”) for a cash sioleration of USD 1 million, increasing its
ownership in the company to 100%. The carrying @@fINTEK net assets at the date of increase of
ownership was USD 20 million. As a result of thieisaction, the Group recognised a decrease in net
assets attributable to minority interest of USDilion. Excess of the Group’s share in fair vatfaet
assets acquired over consideration paid in the ahadlWSD 9 million was recognised in the consdida
income statement.

Acquisitions in 2006

0JSC “Taimyrenergo”

On 31 July 2006, the Group acquired 100% of thearg shares of OJSC “Taimyrenergo”
(“Taimyrenergo”), a company engaged in generatiwhdistribution of electricity in the Norilsk

production area, for a cash consideration of USDraiflion.

At the date of acquisition the fair value of idéatlle assets and liabilities of Taimyrenergo wase

follows:
Fair value
ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment 313
Inventories 2
Trade and other receivables 10
Cash and cash equivalents 4
329
LIABILITIES
Borrowings 5
Deferred tax liabilities 57
Trade and other payables 6
68
Group’s share of net assets acquired 261
Add: Goodwill arising on acquisition 10
Total cost of acquisition 271
Consideration per contract (271
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition
Cash consideration (271,
Cash and cash equivalents acquired 4
Net cash outflow on acquisition (267

At the date of acquisition Taimyrenergo did notgane financial statements in accordance with IFRS.
Thus it was not practicable to determine the cagy@mounts of the acquired assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities in accordance with IFRS indvately before the acquisition, and this informatio
was not presented in these consolidated finanigments.

Taimyrenergo contributed less than USD 1 millionexfenue and USD 6 million of loss before tax from
the date of acquisition to 31 December 2006.

The goodwill that arose on the acquisition waskattable to the expected synergy, control over cost

escalation, independence from a monopoly utilifydier and access to a unique hydro-generating
facilities located in Taimyr Peninsula.
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6.

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

Business segments — primary reporting format

2007

Third party transactions
Intra-segment transactions

Total revenue

Operating profit/(loss)
Share of profits of associates

Profit/(loss) before income tax
Income tax expense

Profit for the year

Assets and liabilities

Investments in associates
Segment assets

Intra-segment assets and eliminations

Total segment assets

Segment liabilities

Intra-segment liabilities and eliminations

Total segment liabilities
Other segment information

Capital expenditures
Amortisation and depreciation
Impairment of goodwiill

Other non-cash expenses

2006

Third party transactions
Intra-segment transactions

Total revenue

Operating profit/(loss)
Share of losses of associates

Profit/(loss) before income tax
Income tax expense

Profit for the year
Assets and liabilities

Investments in associates
Segment assets

Intra-segment assets and eliminations

Total segment assets

Segment liabilities

Intra-segment liabilities and eliminations

Total segment liabilities
Other segment information

Capital expenditures
Amortisation and depreciation
Other non-cash expenses

Mining and Energy  Transport

metallurgy and utilities and logistics Other Eliminations Total
15,959 789 298 73 — 17,119
5 348 269 574 (1,196) —
15,964 1,137 567 647 (1,196) 17,119
8,285 (736) a7) (101, - 7,431
43 33 — — — 76

8,470 (610) (23) (102 - 7,735
(2,459

5,276

575 304 — — - 879
22,907 10,145 1,092 440 - 34,584
1,753 27 9 118 (1,907) —
25,235 10,476 1,101 558 (1,907) 35,463
10,341 161 93 117 — 10,712
143 158 1,448 158 (1,907) —
10,484 319 1,541 275 (1,907) 10,712
774 84 21 330 - 1,209
768 129 22 36 - 955

325 754 — — — 1,079
779 — 28 27 - 834
11,561 101 207 54 - 11,923
— 278 197 79 (554) —
11,561 379 404 133 (554) 11,923
7,131 21 (26) (63) - 7,063
- (33) — - - (33)
6,783 94 (42) (58) — 6,777
(1,805

4,972

— 207 — 1 - 208
11,406 3,095 1,097 446 - 16,044
1,505 22 7 104 (1,638) —
12,911 3,324 1,104 551 (1,638) 16,252
1,757 72 67 122 - 2,018
128 468 850 192 (1,638) —
1,885 540 917 314 (1,638) 2,018
636 44 51 65 - 796
521 44 10 15 - 590

199 14 13 11 - 237
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Geographical segments — secondary reporting format

Segment assets Segment liabilities Capital exphtures
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
Russian Federation 24,330 14,891 8,605 2,332 914 728
Australia 4,487 - 455 - 68 -
Africa 3,783 — 158 — 192 —
Europe 3,572 3,007 2,299 1,600 11 40
North America 945 754 851 487 24 28
Asia 56 94 54 93 - -
37,173 18,746 12,422 4,512 1,209 796
Eliminations (1,710) (2,494) (1,710) (2,494) — —
Total 35,463 16,252 10,712 2,018 1,209 796

Other segmental information

The financial information relating to discontinuegerations is presented in note 48. Metal salas fro
continuing operations by geographical locationhaf Group’s customers are presented in the note 7.
Other sales of the Group were made primarily ortéhdtory of the Russian Federation.

7. METAL SALES

2007 Total Nickel Copper Palladium Platinum Gl
By origin
Russian Federation 14,054 8,956 2,894 1,093 1,004 107
Europe 820 77 30 13 - -
United States of America 509 20 3 215 264 7
Australia 387 353 1 - — 33
Africa 139 110 20 4 4 1
15,909 10,216 2,948 1,325 1,272 148
By destination
Europe 9,968 6,956 2,209 463 327 13
Asia 2,248 1,736 3 256 253 -
North America 2,237 1,079 20 552 527 59
Russian Federation 1,327 351 714 54 165 43
Australia 108 74 1 - - 33
South America 13 13 - - - -
Africa 8 7 1 — — —
15,909 10,216 2,948 1,325 1,272 148
2006
By origin
Russian Federation 11,026 6,212 2,838 1,033 850 93
United States of America 524 16 3 232 266 7
11,550 6,228 2,841 1,265 1,116 100
By destination
Europe 6,846 3,939 2,016 341 506 44
Asia 1,903 1,497 — 309 97 -
North America 1,820 690 84 613 412 21
Russian Federation 981 102 741 2 101 35
11,550 6,228 2,841 1,265 1,116 100
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10.

11.

OTHER SALES

Energy and utilities
Transport and logistics
Other

Total

COST OF METAL SALES

Cash operating costs

On-mine and concentrating costs (refer to note 10)
Smelting costs (refer to note 11)

Treatment and refining costs (refer to note 12)
Other costs (refer to note 13)

Sales of by-products

Total cash operating costs

Amortisation and depreciation of operating assetfe( to note 14)
Decrease in metal inventories

Total

ON-MINE AND CONCENTRATING COSTS

Labour

Consumables and spares

Repair and maintenance

Utilities

Transportation

Rent expenses

Insurance

Outsourced mining services

Tailing pile maintenance and relocation
Sundry on-mine and concentrating costs

Total (refer to note 9)

SMELTING COSTS

Labour

Platinum group scrap metals purchased
Consumables and spares

Insurance

Repairs and maintenance

Utilities

External tolling

Transportation

Rent expenses

Sundry smelting costs

Total (refer to note 9)

33

2007 2006
789 101
298 207
123 65

1,210 373

2,031 1,454

1,143 915

1,168 453
594 388

(1,119) (672

3,817 2,538

824 568
78 52

4,719 3,158
962 648
564 464
135 109

70 31
59 35
51 17
48 51
45 23
38 35
59 41

2,031 1,454
348 245
310 268
271 223

69 70
53 45
30 28
26 -
18 13
7 7
11 16
1,143 915
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12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

TREATMENT AND REFINING COSTS

Purchase of nickel concentrate
Labour

Consumables and spares

Tolling fees

Utilities

Repairs and maintenance
Insurance

Transportation

Rent expenses

Sundry treatment and refining costs

Total (refer to note 9)

OTHER COSTS

Transportation

Tax on mining and pollution levies

Cost of refined metals purchased from third parties
Exploration expenses

Other

Total (refer to note 9)

AMORTISATION AND DEPRECIATION
OF OPERATING ASSETS

Mining and concentrating
Smelting

Treatment and refining
Other

Total (refer to note 9)

COST OF OTHER SALES

Consumables and spares
Labour

Utilities

Amortisation and depreciation
Repair and maintenance
Taxes

Transportation

Rent expenses

Other

Total

SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

Export customs duties
Transportation expenses
Labour

Commission paid
Insurance

Other

Total

34

2007 2006
478 -
240 167
164 146
147 77

56 18
32 14
20 17
14 5
3 3
14 6

1,168 453
179 143
150 127
128 28
113 49

24 41
594 388
606 338
147 165

57 51

14 14
824 568
504 150
226 100
195 11

81 11

58 19

29 3

24 13

14 16

32 22

1,163 345

644 484
31 13
24 14
16 12

6 5
9 8
730 536
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17.

18.

19.

20.

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Labour

Advertising

Taxes other than mining and income taxes and potidévies
Consulting and other professional services
Depreciation

Legal and audit services

Transportation expenses

External research costs

Repairs and maintenance

Insurance

Other

Total

OTHER NET OPERATING EXPENSES

Impairment of property, plant and equipment (reéenote 23)
Donations and maintenance of social sphere fasliti
Change in provision for value added tax recoverable
Change in provision for tax penalties

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Loss/(gain) on disposal of investments in subsiégr
Change in allowance for doubtful debts

Other

Total

FINANCE COSTS

Interest expense on borrowings
Unwinding of discount on decommissioning obligaiqrefer to note 38)

Total

INCOME/(LOSS) FROM INVESTMENTS

Income/(loss) from available-for-sale investments
Interest income on available-for-sale investments
Dividend income on available-for-sale investments
Loss on disposal of shares of Gold Fields Limited
Impairment of available-for-sale investments

Income/(loss) from held-to-maturity investments
Interest income on promissory notes receivable

Income/(loss) from loans given and long-term accots receivable
Interest income on bank deposits

Interest income on loans given and long-term actoreceivable
Impairment of loans given

Income on disposal of investments in associates
Other

Total
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2007 2006
435 226
102 70

90 82
48 29
32 19
23 21
21 17
18 20
18 12
12 5
95 53
894 554
800 87
158 146
149 9
29 19
25 21
18 (6)
(8) 5
4 (14)

1,175 267

284 60

23 19
307 79
7 —
5 6
- (317,
(24) -
g —
222 72
9 2
(18) (83)
6 117
7 4
223 (199
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21.

22.

2007 2006
FOREIGN EXCHANGE GAIN, NET
Foreign currency exchange gain on financing adisjtnet 324 58
Foreign currency exchange loss on investing a@winet (82) -
Foreign currency exchange loss on operating aes/inet (96) (33)
Total 146 25
INCOME TAX
Current tax expense 2,622 1,893
Deferred tax benefit (163) (88)
Total 2,459 1,805
A reconciliation of statutory income tax, calculhtg the rate
effective in the Russian Federation, the locatibthe Head office
and major production assets of the Group, to theusarmof actual
income tax expense recorded in the consolidateximecstatement is
as follows:
Profit before tax from continuing operations 7,735 6,777
Profit before tax from discontinued operation (refenote 48) — 1,005
Profit before tax from continuing and discontinuedoperations 7,735 7,782
Income tax at statutory rate of 24% 1,856 1,868
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries opirgin other jurisdictions 14 (291
Tax effect of permanent differences 259 164
Tax effect of goodwill impairment 259 -
Tax effect of change in provisions for tax penalt@nd recoverable amount of

value added tax 43 7
Deferred tax asset not recognised on impairmefinahcial assets 4 29
Taxable losses of subsidiaries not carried forward - 2
Effect of unused tax losses and tax offsets naigeised as deferred tax assets 24 38
Income tax at effective rate of 32% (2006: 23%) 2,459 1,817
Less: Income tax attributable to discontinued openarefer to note 48) - (12)
Income tax expense attributable to continuing oper#ons 2,459 1,805
The corporate income tax rates in other countriesre/the Group
has a taxable presence vary from 0% to 39%.
Deferred income tax
Balance at beginning of the year 881 543
Benefit recognised during the year (163) (88)
Revaluation of available-for-sale investments 149 304
Effect of change in classification of available &ale investments to investments
in associates due to increase of ownership (73) -

Acquisition of subsidiaries (refer to note 5) 1,784 57
Disposal of subsidiaries (refer to note 42) (14) -
Hedging reserve @) -
Effect of translation to presentation currency 95 65
Balance at end of the year 2,652 881
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2007 2006
The tax effects of temporary differences that gise to deferred
taxation are presented below:
Property, plant and equipment 2,220 662
Intangible assets 141 (10)
Accrued operating expenses (111) (41)
Valuation of receivables 9) )
Unrealised profit on intra-group transactions (43) (86)
Inventory valuation 11 59
Valuation of investments 437 307
Income tax loss carried forward (99) (89)
Provision for tax losses and tax offsets recognasedeferred tax assets 137 100
Other (32) (19)
Total 2,652 881
Certain deferred tax assets and liabilities haentwdfset in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. &halysis of
the deferred tax balances (after offset) as theyeworded in
the consolidated balance sheet is presented below:
Deferred tax liabilities 2,741 881
Deferred tax assets (89) —
Net deferred tax liabilities 2,652 881

The unutilised tax losses of the North Americanrapens at 31 December 2007, which were available
for offset against future taxable income earneithéUnited States of America, in the amount of
USD 339 million (2006: USD 297 million), have nadn recognised as a deferred tax asset.

At 31 December 2007, the Group did not recognidefarred tax liability in respect of taxable tengorgr
differences associated with investments in subgetiaof USD 1,317 million (2006: USD 2,531 millign)
because management believed that it was in a @ositicontrol the timing of reversal of such diffiaces
and has no intention to reverse them in the foeddeduture.
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23. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Non-mining assets

Buildings, Machinery,
structures  equipment Capital
Mining and and construction-
assets utilities transport Other in-progress Total

Cost
Balance at 31 December 2005 3,639 2,582 1,866 147 751 8,985
Additions 240 - - - 529 769
Transfers - 199 248 7 (454) -
Decommissioning asset raised (refer to note 38) 12 3) - - - 9
Acquired on acquisition of subsidiaries

(refer to note 5) - 200 107 - 8 315
Disposals 27) (22) (61) (2) (2) (114)
Effect of translation to presentation currency 311 250 183 9 72 825
Balance at 31 December 2006 4,175 3,206 2,343 161 904 10,789
Additions 530 - - - 633 1,163
Transfers - 91 352 35 (478) -
Decommissioning asset raised (refer to note 38) 83 6 - - - 89
Acquired on acquisition of subsidiaries

(refer to note 5) 4,221 853 1,494 53 215 6,836
Disposed of on disposal of subsidiaries

(refer to note 42) - (81) 2 - 1) (84)
Disposals (49) (32) (106) (6) (34) (227)
Reclassified as held for sale (refer to note 33) - (14) (50) - 5) (69)
Effect of translation to presentation currency 426 236 211 5 57 935
Balance at 31 December 2007 9,386 4,265 4,242 248 1,291 19,432
Accumulated amortisation, depreciation and

impairment
Balance at 31 December 2005 (680) (562) (565) (26) (81) (1,914)
Charge for the year (196) (182) (178) 9) - (565)
Eliminated on disposals 14 5 27 2 - 48
Impairment loss (refer to note 18) (2) (85) (@) - 7 (87)
Effect of translation to presentation currency (69) (59) (60) (1) (7) (196)
Balance at 31 December 2006 (933) (883) (783) (34) (81) (2,714)
Charge for the year (394) (201) (299) (24) - (918)
Disposed of on disposal of subsidiaries

(refer to note 42) - 10 1 - - 11
Eliminated on disposals 33 14 39 2 26 114
Impairment loss (refer to note 18) (765) (10) a7 — (8) (800)
Reclassified as held for sale (refer to note 33) - 4 30 - - 34
Effect of translation to presentation currency (63) (44) (57) (2) (12) (178)
Balance at 31 December 2007 (2,122) (1,110) (1,086) (58) (75) (4,451)
Carrying value
31 December 2006 3,242 2,323 1,560 127 823 8,075
31 December 2007 7,264 3,155 3,156 190 1,216 14,981

Annual test for impairment

As at 31 December 2007, the Group conducted armmpairment review of property, plant and equipment.
LLC “Norilsk-Telecom”

On 2 November 2007, management of the Group maldeiaion to dispose of LLC “Norilsk-Telecom”
(“Norilsk-Telecom”) and its subsidiaries. Accordingin the accompanying consolidated financial
statements associated assets and liabilities dfkidirelecom were presented as held for sale (tefeote 33).
The difference between the carrying value of N&fifelecom’s net assets as at 31 December 2007 and
the expected proceeds from disposal in the amdw&D® 15 million was recognised as an impairment of
property, plant and equipment.
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Tati Nickel, a subsidiary of LionOre

Subsequent to acquisition of LionOre, an extenf#asibility review of the Activox Refinery Projeat

Tati Nickel, a subsidiary of LionOre, was condudigdnanagement of the Group and an independedt thir
party. The review highlighted a substantial profexsdt escalation from the feasibility study condddby

the previous owners. The major contributing factorthe substantial cost escalation were:

e anincrease in construction and equipment costdmade, and
° project management cost worldwide.

In addition, short-term energy capacity constraiisig experienced in Southern Africa have beeesassl
as a risk that would have adversely affected tinengissioning time to production and the overall egoit
of the Activox Refinery Project.

Based on these facts and circumstances managefaet@roup made a decision to postpone the project
indefinitely. As a result, as at 31 December 20@Yenal rights presented within mining assets aratigal
recognised on acquisition of LionOre were impairethe amounts of USD 765 million and USD 325 roillj
respectively (refer to note 24).

Others

Additional impairment loss recognised in respegbrafperty, plant and equipment in the amount of
USD 20 million was attributable to the greater thaticipated wear and tear and certain frozen ogct&in
projects.

The impairment loss was recorded within other djregeexpenses in the consolidated income statement.
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24. GOODWILL

Cost

Balance at beginning of the year
Acquired on acquisition of subsidiaries (refer tien5)
Effect of translation to presentation currency

Balance at end of the year
Accumulated impairment losses

Balance at beginning of the year
Impairment loss

Balance at end of the year

Carrying value
31 December 2006
31 December 2007

Allocation of goodwill to separate cash-generatingnits

The carrying amount of goodwill, prior to recogaitiof impairment
loss, was allocated to the following segments amallest individual
cash-generating units within respective segments:

Mining and metallurgy segment
LionOre — Botswana operations
LionOre — Australia operations

Total allocated to mining and metallurgy segment

Energy and utilities segment
OGK-3
Taimyrenergo

Total allocated to energy and utilities segment
Total allocated to transport and logistics segment
Total

Annual test for impairment

OGK-3

2007 2006
25 14
4,256 10
158 1
4,439 25
(1,079) —
(1,079) —
25 14
3,360 25
1,691 -
596 —
2,287 —
2,125 -
11 10
2,136 10
16 15
4,439 25

Recoverable amount of goodwill attributable to OGMras determined based on the market value of
OGK-3 shares as at 31 December 2007 less codt.tAsa result of the test, an impairment loss of

USD 754 million was recognised.
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LionOre

For the purpose of impairment loss assessment rearead of the Group measured value-in-use of LionOre
Group and its subsidiaries based on cash flowscteg¢o be generated by cash-generating unitsybein
the individual mines, smelting and refining operas.

Cash flows were projected up to the expected ofodate of mining and metallurgy operations and were
based on the assumptions presented below.

The long-term commodity price forecasts for nickel, copper and other by-products, for pags of
performing the value-in-use calculations, is manag&'s estimates based on their experience of
the specific commodities markets as at the datieeoimpairment test, that are within the rangextémal
market forecasts and is slightly higher than tHeutated market average prevailing at the timeyinarin
accordance with the year in which the sale is eegeo occur.

Economically recoverable reserves and resources were primarily based on the external mining engiise
reports available on the date of impairment testemrest date when appropriate evaluation work was
undertaken.

Inflation expectations and foreign currency trends were in general consistent with the external sesiaf
information and presented is as follows:

Inflation expectations, %

Botswana 400 - 8.10

Australia 3.50 - 4.40
Expected exchange rates

Botswana Pul&S Dollar 6.17 —-10.34

Australian DollafUS Dollar 1.14 - 1.28

Discount rates reflect management’s assessment of the risksfgpeieach production unit and are
supported by reviews conducted by external valnagecialists. These rates are based on the wdighte
average cost of capital specific to each cash-géngrunit and presented is as follows:

Discount rates, %
Botswana 10.40
Australia 6.87

Goodwill impairment test for LionOre was undertakei831 December 2007 based on appropriate results
and assumptions used in valuation of identifiaBkets, liabilities and contingent liabilities obhiOre and

it's subsidiaries performed as at 28 June 200 hbgpendent qualified appraiser. Due to facts and
circumstances described in details in note 23pgorairment loss of USD 325 million was recognised by
the Group in respect of goodwill attributable tdiTdickel, a subsidiary of LionOre.
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25. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Long-term
Patentand favourable

licences contracts Software Other Total
Cost
Balance at 31 December 2005 6 103 25 8 142
Additions 1 - 19 7 27
Disposals - - 1) - 1)
Effect of translation to presentation currency - — 3 1 4
Balance at 31 December 2006 7 103 46 16 172
Acquired on acquisition of subsidiaries (refer tbenb) 706 - 2 1 709
Additions 2 - 21 23 46
Reclassified as held for sale - - ) — 2
Disposals - - 2) 1) ?3)
Effect of translation to presentation currency 22 — 4 3 29
Balance at 31 December 2007 737 103 69 42 951
Accumulated amortisation and impairment
Balance at 31 December 2005 X2 (30) ?3) (4) (39)
Charge for the year @ (14) (6) (1) (25)
Effect of translation to presentation currency — — — (1) (1)
Balance at 31 December 2006 X6 (44) 9) (6) (65)
Charge for the year 2) (14) (23) (8) 37)
Eliminated on disposals - - 2 - 2
Effect of translation to presentation currency - — (1) (1) (2)
Balance at 31 December 2007 (8) (58) (21) (15) (102)
Carrying value
31 December 2006 1 59 37 10 107
31 December 2007 729 45 48 27 849

Included in patent and licenses acquired in 20@7esight to use a unique refining technology stged
under the trade mark Activox, owned by LionOrer Falue of the right was determined by an indepehde
professional appraiser and comprised USD 706 millidhe right has an indefinite useful life and

is not amortised.

Intangible assets included long-term favourablessebntracts that are amortised over their ternisyefrs.
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2007 2006
26. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES
Balance at beginning of the year 208 95
Acquired during the year 3,298 151
Established during the year 28 —
Acquired on acquisition of subsidiaries (refer tien5) 580 -
Disposed of during the year Q) (39)
Reclassified from investments available-for-sale thuincrease of ownership 427 -
Reclassified to investments available-for-sale wudecrease of ownership ?3) (35)
Reclassified to investment in subsidiaries duentwease of ownership (3,832) -
Share of post-acquisition profits 5 3
Excess of the Group’s share in the fair value sbagtes' identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities over the ¢@d acquisition 72 -
Dividends received (20) -
Impairment Q) (36)
Reclassified from assets held for sale — 56
Effect of translation to presentation currency 118 13
Balance at end of the year 879 208
Details of the Group’s associates were as follows:
Carrying
Market value of Total Total Profit/
Name of associate value investment assets liahilities Sales (loss)
2007
Nkomati Nickel Mine 0] n/a 575 1,190 40 58 (11)
Smart Hydrogen Incorporated (i) n/a 111 222 - - -
0JSC “TGK-14" (iii) 74 58 279 73 193 (6)
0JSC “Krasnoyarskenergo” (iv) 170 40 215 60 269 31
0OJSC “Norilskgazprom” n/a 33 148 39 135 6
0JSC “KTK” (V) n/a 28 57 — — —
0JSC “Kolenergo” 30 17 94 29 104 4
Other n/a 17 66 3 353 (3)
879 2,271 244 1,112 21
2006
Smart Hydrogen Incorporated (i) n/a 112 224 - - (76)
0JSC “Krasnhoyarskenergo” (iv) 164 30 143 31 225 6
0JSC “Norilskgazprom” n/a 30 140 36 122 16
0JSC “Kolenergo” 51 15 85 27 100 —
Other n/a 21 226 106 972 (20)
208 818 200 1,419 (74)

(i) Nkomati Nickel Mine.On 28 June 2007, as a part of acquisition of Li@&ining International
Limited (refer to note 5), the Group acquired 50B6kmare capital of Nkomati Nickel Mine,
a South African mining company.

(i) Smart Hydrogen IncorporatedThe Company is a joint venture formed in April 808y the Group
and Interros Holding Company, a related party. EBneup owns 50% of the joint venture.
In June 2006, through this entity the principakistors acquired a 35% stake in Plug Power
Incorporated, a US designer of environmentallyreclaad reliable energy products.

At 31 December 2007 and 2006 management revieveechitnying value of the Group’s investment in

Smart Hydrogen Incorporated for impairment. Assulie impairment loss in the amount of
USD 1 million (2006: USD 36 million) was recognised
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(i) TGK-14.0n 30 January 2007, the Group acquired 215,41ibmiprdinary shares, or 27.8%
of the issued share capital of OJSC “Territoriah&ation Company®e 14” (“TGK-14") for cash
consideration of USD 44 million. As a result ofthiansaction, the Group recognised in the coraelit
income statement the excess of the Group’s sharaithvalue of TGK-14 intangible assets, lialwidti
and contingent liabilities over the cost of thedstment in the amount of USD 12 million.

In August 2007, TGK-14 increased its share caffitalugh the issuance of additional ordinary
shares; as a result, the Group’s share in this aogngecreased to 27.7%.

(iv) Krasnoyarskenergoln October 2005 and March 2006, as a result ofé¢beganisation of
0JSC “Krasnoyarskenergo” the Group became a shdehin OJSC “Krasnoyarskaya Generatsiya”
and OJSC “Krasnoyarskiye Magistralniye Seti”. Invidmber 2006, the Group sold its share in
0OJSC “Krasnoyarskaya Generatsiya” for a cash cengiihn of USD 156 million (refer to note 43).

(v) KTK.OJSC “KTK” is a joint venture established in Decemb@0Z for the purpose of generating

steam and hot water. The Group contributed USD il®®minto share capital and became the owner
of 50% interest in this entity.

Other significant movements during the years end&dDecember 2007 and 2006

(vi) TGK-1.In November 2006, as a part of the reorganisatfdRAO “UES of Russia” the Group’s

investments in OJSC “Kolskaya Generiruyuschaya Kamgd and OJSC “Apatitskaya TEC” were
exchanged for 208,928 million shares of OJSC “Tatidl Generation Company 1” (“TGK-1").

In May 2007, the Group’s investment in OJSC “Mursiaya TEC” was exchanged for
6,743 million shares of TGK-1. At 31 December 2@@dd 2006 investment in TGK-1
was classified as investment in listed securitieslable-for-sale (refer to note 27).

(vii) MPI. On 1 March 2007, as a part of acquisition of nidgkediness of OM Group Incorporated,

the Group acquired 20% of share capital of MPI Kidkroprietary Limited for a cash consideration
of USD 135 million.

As a result of this transaction, the Group recagghia the consolidated income statement the exifess
the Group’s share in the fair value of MPI Nickebftietary Limited identifiable assets, liabilitiand
contingent liabilities over cost of the investmanthe amount of USD 60 million.

On 28 June 2007, an additional 80% of share cagitdlPl Nickel Proprietary Limited was acquired
by the Group through acquisition of LionOre (refenote 5).

(viii) OGK-3.0n 26 March 2007, the Group acquired 17,836 milbodinary shares of
0JSC “Third Generation Company of the Wholesaletktity Market” (“OGK-3") (refer to note 5)

for a cash consideration of USD 3,119 million. Atempletion of this transaction the Group became
the owner of 46.9% of OGK-3.

During July-August 2007, the Group acquired an temtthl 7.2% of interest in OGK-3 for
a cash consideration of USD 612 million, increasiagwnership to 54.1% (refer to note 5).
After completion of this transaction investmenQ@®K-3 was consolidated as investment in subsidiary.
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2007 2006
27. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

Non-current
Available-for-sale investments, at fair value
Listed securities 2,418 2,326
Unlisted securities 5 5
Held-to-maturity investments, at amortised cost
Promissory notes receivable 12 3
Loans and receivables, at amortised cost
Bank deposits 521 268
Loans given 19 5
Accounts receivable 7 8
Total non-current 2,982 2,615
Current
Available-for-sale investments, at fair value
Listed securities 117 35
Promissory notes receiva 61€ -
Held-to-maturity investments, at amortised cost
Promissory notes receivable 775 2
Loans and receivables, at amortised cost
Bank deposits 2,832 -
Loans given 131 45
Financial assets, at fair value through profit or bss (FVTPL)
Assets held under trust agreement — 22
Total current 4,473 104
Listed and unlisted securities available-for-salesisted of shares
of the following companies:
RAO “UES of Russia” 1,883 1,580
0OJSC “TGK-1" (refer to note 26) 281 79
0JSC “OGK-5" 107 -
0JSC “Polyus Gold” 89 95
Talvivaara Mining Company Limited 73 —
U.S. federal agency notes 25 22
Breakaway Resources Limited 23 -
Canadian Royalties Incorporated 21 -
0JSC “TGK-5" 18 —
0JSC “TGK-2" 2 -
0OJSC “Samara Bearing Plant” 1 5
0JSC “OGK-3” - 572
Other 17 13
Total 2,540 2,366

In September 2007, OJSC “Fifth Generation CompdrigeoWholesale Electricity Market” (*OGK-5")
and OJSC “Territorial Generation Compa®ws” (“TGK-5") were spun-off from RAO “UES of Russia
(“RAO UES") as a part of its reorganisation. In aaance with the restructuring plan all sharehalddr
RAO UES received ordinary shares of OGK-5 and TGiK-portion to their shareholding in RAO UES.
As a result of the spin-off, the Group received G@ilion ordinary shares of OGK-5 and 20,043 miflio
ordinary shares of TGK-5.
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28.

Interest rates on long-term deposits held in baakg from 6.1% to 6.3% (2006: 6.1% to 7.4%) pensnn
Interest rates on short-term deposits held in baakgfrom 7.0% to 8.6% per annum.

Long-term loans given included a loan to a relgady (refer to note 43) amounted to

USD 70 million and bearing interest at LIBOR + @& per annum. The loan is secured by 67% of
the shares of Edgar Eclipse Incorporated, a compaliing a 99% interest in a property development
business. As at 31 December 2007, it was not gedal® to determine the fair value of this collaltera
As a result, it has been fully impaired.

At 31 December 2007, short-term loans given inaiudans to several exploration companies, related
parties to the Group, in the amount of USD 53 omll{2006: USD 11 million) at interest rates varyirgn
6.4% to 6.5% per annum. During 2007 the Group retietgd the terms of these loans. Under the nawster
the loans are due in 2008. Management of the Goelipves that the loans will be repaid in full chgyi
2008, thus no impairment loss was recognised 3% Becember 2007.

At 31 December 2007, current listed securitieslatse-for-sale mostly comprised an investment in
0JSC “Polyus Gold” of USD 89 million. On 9 SeptemB607, the Board of Directors approved a decision
to sell its investments in OJSC “Polyus Gold”, @&nslas reclassified from non-current to curreniistynents
within listed securities available-for-sale.

Promissory notes receivable included notes issy€dlsC “Rosbank” in the amount of USD 774 million
due on 8 May 2008. The effective interest ratelattable to these promissory notes is 8.5% per @nnu
Management held these promissory notes to maturity.

In addition, the Group held notes receivable isdne@JSC “Sberbank” in the amount of USD 618 miljio
due on 14 November 2009. The effective interestattibutable to these promissory notes is 8.886 pe
annum. Management of the Group has an intentigette these promissory notes in 2008, accordingly,
they were presented as available-for-sale finaasiséts.

2007 2006
TAXES
Taxes receivable
Value added tax recoverable 585 592
Customs duties 65 55
Other taxes 8 10

658 657

Less: Allowance for value added tax recoverable (35) (38)
Total 623 619
Less: Non-current portion (38) (44)
Current taxes receivable 585 575
Taxes payable
Provision for tax fines and penalties 76 52
Property tax 31 25
Value added tax 28 29
Tax on mining 17 16
Unified social tax 15 12
Other 30 15
Total 197 149
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29.

30.

2007 2006
INVENTORIES
Refined metals
Joint products at net production cost 502 361
By-products at net realisable value 190 135
Work-in-process at net production cost 456 273
Total metal inventories 1,148 769
Stores and materials at cost 985 732
Less: Allowance for obsolete and slow-moving items (25) (30)
Net stores and materials 960 702
Total inventories 2,108 1,471
TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Trade receivables for metal sales 713 573
Other receivables 288 195
1,001 768
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts (52) (71)
Total 949 697

In 2007 the average credit period on metal salessOxa30 days (2006: 0 - 30 days). Trade receigadnie
generally non-interest bearing. The Group has fuiyided for all receivables which were due inessc

of 180 days based on the historical experiencestingt receivables are generally not recoverable.
Trade receivables that are past due for less tB@mdys are generally not provided for. The payrtemts
for Tati (Botswana) are set out in the relatedaoré concentrate purchase agreements, which sggulat
that payments are due within 150 days for baselsnatad varies from 240 to 300 days for precioutatse
However for certain agreements, 70% of paymentsiftkel and 90% payments for other metals are
receivable within 60 days.

The average credit period on sales of electriaity ather products and services for the year ended
31 December 2007 was 25 days (2006: 25 days). tdest was charged on these receivables.

The Group has provided fully for all other receilesbover 365 days based on the historical
experience that other receivables that are pasbelyend 365 days are generally not recoverable.

Provision in respect of receivables that were less 365 days old was determined based on thelptzsatlt
experience.

The Group did not hold any collateral for accouatsivable balances.
Included in the Group’s other receivables at 31dbgwer 2007 were debtors with a carrying value of
USD 76 million (2006: USD 57 million) that were pasie but not impaired. Management of the Group

believes that these amounts are recoverable in full

Ageing of other receivables past due but not ingzhwas as follows:

2007 2006

Less then 180 days 36 30
180-365 days 35 27
More than 365 days 5 -
76 57
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31.

32.

33.

2007 2006
Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts wasolews:
Balance at beginning of the year 71 56
Change in allowance 9) 21
Account receivables written-off (16) (13)
Effect of translation to presentation currency 6 7
Balance at end of the year 52 71
Included in allowance for doubtful debts is a sfieeillowance
against other receivables of USD 16 million (2006D 13 million)
from entities placed into a bankruptcy. The alloegarepresents
the difference between the carrying amount of tmeseivables
and the present value of the expected proceedguddtion.
The Group did not hold collateral in respect ofthbalances.
ADVANCES PAID AND PREPAID EXPENSES
Advances paid 151 56
Prepaid insurance 32 97
Total 183 153
At 31 December 2007, advances paid were preseeteaf n
impairment of USD 7 million (2006: USD 6 million).
During the year ended 31 December 2007, an impatrtoss
of USD 1 million (2006: USD 2 million) was recogais
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Current accounts - RUR 320 185
- foreign currencies 384 263
Bank deposits - RUR 209 15
- foreign currencies 3,087 1,618
Restricted cash 6 5
Other cash and cash equivalents 2 92
Total 4,008 2,178

ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

On 2 November 2007, management of the Group maléeiaion to dispose of LLC “Norilsk-Telecom”
and its subsidiaries (“Norilsk-Telecom”). The piipal activity of Norilsk-Telecom was providing
telecommunication services in the Krasnoyarsk regio

Assets and liabilities attributable to Norilsk-Teden were classified as a disposal group held fier aad
presented separately in the consolidated balarest.sfhe Group’s share in Norilsk-Telecom was sold
May 2008 for a cash consideration of USD 51 milljeefer to note 49). The difference between theyoay
value of assets and liabilities and the expectedgads from disposal of USD 15 million was recogphias
impairment loss of property, plant and equipment.
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34.

The major classes of assets and liabilities cliasss#s held for sale as at 31 December 2007 wdati@ass:

Property, plant and equipment (refer to note 23)
Trade and other receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Inventory

Other assets

Total assets held for sale

Trade and other payables
Employee benefit obligations
Other liabilities

Total liabilities associated with assets held forade

Net assets held for sale

SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised, issued and fully paid share capital

31 December 2007: 190,627,747 ordinary sharesratgdae of RUR 1 each
31 December 2006: 190,627,747 ordinary sharesratgdae of RUR 1 each

Total

Treasury shares

31 December 2007: 1,710,884 ordinary shares
31 December 2006: 9,209,834 ordinary shares

Total

Number of ordinary shares in issue at end of treg ye

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in idsuiag the year

2007

2007

35
11
8
2
4

60

4
2
3

9

51

2006

(999

(999

188,916,863

182,362,986

On 27 March 2006, 23,278,137 treasury shares vereetied by the Company.

On 28 December 2006, 7,498,950 ordinary sharesheeight back from shareholders at RUR 3,510 peesha

for a total consideration of USD 999 million.

181,417,913

188,767,177

On 16 November 2007, 7,498,950 of the Company’seshaere reissued from treasury stock at
USD 285 per share for a total consideration of (2337 million. Direct expenses in the amount of
USD 10 million and income tax associated with nggsse in the amount of USD 272 million were

deducted from proceeds.
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35. OTHER RESERVES

Investments
revaluation Hedging Revaluation Translation
reserve reserve surplus reserve Total

Balance at 31 December 2005 690 - - 748 1,438
Increase in fair value of available-for-sale

investments 920 - - - 920
Loss on cash flow hedge - (15) - - (15)
Translation of foreign operations - - - (55) (55)
Effect of translation to presentation currency - — - 1,012 1,012
Net income recognised directly in equity 1,610 (15) - 1,705 3,300
Realised gain on disposal of available-$aie

investments (613) — - (7) (620)
Total recognised income and expense 997 (15) - 1,698 2,680
Cancellation of treasury shares - - - (15) (15)
Net assets distributed to shareholders on

disposal of Polyus Group — — — (103) (103)
Balance at 31 December 2006 997 (15) - 1,580 2,562
Increase in fair value of available-for-sale

investments 465 - - - 465
Effect of change in classification of

available-for-sale investments to

investments in associates due to increa

ownership (222) - 43 4) (183)
Loss on cash flow hedge - (16) - - (16)
Translation of foreign operations - - - (206) (206)
Effect of translation to presentation currency - — - 1,201 1,201
Net income recognised directly in equity 1,240 (31) 43 2,571 3,823
Impairment of available-for-sale investments 24 - - - 24
Other reserves disposed of on disposal of

subsidiaries — — — (5) (5)
Total recognised income and expense 1,264 (31) 43 2,566 3,842
Issuance of ordinary shares from treasury

stock net of direct expenses and attribut:

income tax - — — (77) (77)
Balance at 31 December 2007 1,264 (31) 43 2,489 3,765
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36. BORROWINGS

2007

2006

Outstanding

Outstanding

Currency Rate,% balance Rate, % balance
Bank loans
LIBOR+
Societe Generale, syndicated loan (0] usD 0.53-0.63 3,473 - -
LIBOR+
BNP Paribas (ii) usD 0.30-0.40 2,497 - -
Sberbank (iii) RUR 8.75 612 - -
Societe Generale (iv) USD LIBOR+0.43 200 — —
Toronto Dominion v) uUsD LIBOR+2.5 95 LIBOR+3.25 96
BBSY+
ANZ Syndicate (vij  AUD 0.61-1.01 66 - -
Gazprombank (vi) USD — — 5.95 120
West LB Vostok (vii) USD - - 5.80 25
Other vary vary 25 vary 21
Promissory notes (ix) 5.50 580 - -
Guaranteed notes x) usD 7.125 499 7.125 499
Exempt Facility Reversal Bonds Series 2000 (xi) DUS 8.57 29 8.57 29
Total 8,076 790
Less: current portion due within twelve months and
presented under short-term borrowings (3,973) 158
Long-term borrowings 4,103 632
The maturity profile of the Group’s
borrowings is as follows:
Due within one month 8 153
Due from one to three months 598 —
Due from three to twelve months 3,367 5
Total short-term borrowings 3,973 158
Due in the second year 827 4
Due in the third year 2,247 502
Due in the fourth year 665 93
Due in the fifth year 333 —
Due thereafter 31 33
Total long-term borrowings 4,103 632
Total 8,076 790

51



MINING AND METALLURGICAL COMPANY NORILSK NICKEL

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007
US Dollars million

0] Societe Generale Fhe USD 3,500 million syndicated loan consistsaaf credit lines for USD 2,000 million
and USD 1,500 million. The credit line in the ambahUSD 2,000 million was arranged for five yeats
floating rate of LIBOR + 0.53% per annum (effectiate 5.39%) up to 29 June 2010 and LIBOR + 0.68% p
annum (effective rate 5.49%) thereafter and sedoyessignment of rights for proceeds from nickel eopper
supply agreements of Metal Trade Overseas S.ANanitsk Nickel Europe Limited, subsidiaries of tBeoup.
The secured credit line in the amount of USD 2,080llon is to be repaid in equal quarterly instahltgewith
the final instalment due on 29 June 2012. The wmseccredit line in the amount of USD 1,500 millias
arranged for three years at floating rate of LIBOR60% per annum (effective rate 5.46%), and eiddull in
June 2010. Interest is payable on a monthly basis.

The Group is obliged to comply with a number ofniegve financial and other covenants, includingintaining
certain financial ratios and credit ratings, arstrietions on pledging and disposal of certain @sse

(i) BNP Paribas —The USD 2,500 million unsecured loan consistsvof ¢redit lines for USD 1,000 million and
USD 1,500 million. A credit line in the amount oSD 1,000 was arranged at floating rate of LIBOR30@0
per annum (effective rate 5.16%), and is due ihifiulune 2008. The credit line in the amount of
USD 1,500 million was arranged at floating raté &OR + 0.40% per annum (effective rates 5.26% and
5.64% for different tranches), and is due in falDune 2008. Interest is payable on a monthly basis

(i)  Sberbank -The USD 612 million unsecured loan, with a fixaterof 8.75% per annum, is due in full in
November 2008. Interest is payable on a monthlysbas

(iv)  Societe Generale Fhe USD 200 million unsecured loan, with a flogtmate of LIBOR + 0.43% per annum
(effective rate 5.36%), is due in full in March B0nterest is payable on a monthly basis.

(v)  Toronto Dominion —The USD 250 million credit facility arranged byilBtater Mining Company,
a subsidiary of the Group, at floating rate of LIB® 2.50% per annum (effective rate 7.38%). Tha ledo be
repaid in equal semi-annual instalments with thal finstalment due on 30 July 2010. Substantidlithe property
and assets of Stillwater Mining Company were pledae security for this credit facility. The loarregment
requires that 50% of the company’s annual exceds ftav and any proceeds from asset sales andgharice
of debt or equity securities, subject to speciézdeptions, be offered to repay this loan.

(vi)  ANZ Syndicate -The USD 118 million credit facility arranged byolniOre Mining International Limited,
a subsidiary of the Group, that is secured by shaffeubsidiaries of LionOre Group located in Aalr.
The loan is to be repaid in equal monthly instalteestarting from March 2007, with the final instaim
repayable in December 2008. The interest rate ¥&men the Bill Rate of the Reserve Bank of Auséral
(“BBSY") + 0.61% (effective rate 8.18%) to BBSY +01% (effective rate 8.58%) per annum.

(vii)  Gazprombank -TheUSD 120 million unsecured loan, with a fixed r&ft®85%, was fully repaid in January 2007.
(viiy  West LB Vostok The USD 25 million unsecured loan, with a fixetd raf 5.80%, was fully repaid in January 2007.

(ix)  Promissory notes Promissory notes were issued by OJSC “MMC Nomstkel” in September 2007 with
an effective interest rate of 5.50%, and which meatluring February — April 2008. The par value i@irpissory
notes amounted to USD 566 million.

(x)  Guaranteed notes ©n 30 September 2004, Norilsk Nickel Luxemburg.SaAvholly owned special purpose
subsidiary of the Group, issued USD 500 millior2B% notes. The notes were issued at par valueawithterest
payable semi-annually in arrears on 30 March an8&iember, and the principal due on 30 Septentfi9. 2
The notes are unconditionally and irrevocably gotead by OJSC “MMC Norilsk Nickel”.

(xi) Exempt Facility Reversal Bonds Series 2000 ke USD 29 million of bonds issued by Stillwateinivig

Company, a subsidiary of the Group on 6 July 200, an effective interest rate of 8.57% and dufiihon
1 July 2020. Interest is payable semi-annually.
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2007 2006
37. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS
The most recent actuarial valuations of plans asset the present
value of the defined benefit obligation were catrieit at
31 December 2007.
Defined benefit pension plans assets 8 —
Total assets 8 —
Wages and salaries 206 92
Accrual for annual leave 164 143
Defined contribution obligations 11 -
Defined benefit obligations 6 63
Other 2 18
Total obligations 389 316
Less: current portion due within twelve months andpresented under current liabilities (379 (259)
Long-term employee benefit obligations 11 57
Defined benefit plans
Present value of defined benefit obligations 240 119
Fair value of plans assets (148 (11)
Present value of unfunded obligations 92 108
Plan assets above limits 19 -
Unrecognised past service cost (2) -
Unrecognised actuarial losses (112 (45)
(2) 63
Amounts recognised in the consolidated incomera&atewere as
follows:
Current service costs 2 2
Expected return on plans assets (8) -
Additional cost arising from new plan members 15 4
Net actuarial losses recognised during the year 22 2
Plan assets above limits recognised during the year 19 -
Gain arising from curtailment 5) -
Interest expense 10 7
Total 55 15
Movements in the present value of the defined beakligations were as follows:
Lifelong Joint
professional corporate
pension plan pension plan Other
Balance at 31 December 2005 66 35 -
Benefits paid (@) (1) -
Current service cost 2 4 -
Interest cost 5 2 -
Actuarial loss/(gain) 11 (5) -
Effect of translation to presentation currency 4 3 —
Balance at 31 December 2006 81 38 -
Acquired on acquisition of subsidiaries - - 16
Benefits paid (6) (4) -
Current service cost - 16 1
Interest cost 6 3 1
Actuarial loss/(gain) 92 (7 2)
Gain on curtailment - - (5)
Effect of translation to presentation currency 6 4 —
Balance at 31 December 2007 179 50 11
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Movements in the fair value of plans assets weffelbsvs:

Lifelong Joint
professional corporate
pension plan pension plan

Balance at 31 December 2005 — -
Contributions from the employer — 11
Balance at 31 December 2006 — 11
Contributions from the employer 70 64
Expected return on plans assets 4 4
Actuarial gain - 2)
Benefits paid (6) 4)
Effect of translation to presentation currency 4 3
Balance at 31 December 2007 72 76

Starting from 2006, the Group’s pension plans ameaged by a non-state Pension Fund “Norilsk Nickel”
Contributions from the Group to this Fund for tleayended 31 December 2007 amounted to

USD 201 million (2006: USD 11 million).

The major categories of pension plans assets aneibected rate of return at the balance sheet tate

each category were as follows:

Expected return Fair value of pension plans asset

2007 2006 2007 2006
Equity instruments 9.8% 46.7% 37 3
Bonds 6.6% 7.9% 76 6
Promissory notes - 6.4% - 1
Deposits 6.6% 8.7% 35 -
Other — 4.9% — 1
Weighted average expected return 7.4% 10.4% 148 11

The following table is a summary of the presenugaif defined benefit obligations and fair value of

the pension plans assets for the current year aavibpis four annual periods:

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
Defined benefit obligations 240 119 104 70 44
Plans assets (148) (11) - -
Deficit 92 108 104 44
Key assumptions used in estimation of defined beabligations were as follows:

2007 2006

Discount rate 6.6% 7.0%
Expected rate of return on plans assets 7.4% 10.4%
Pre-retirement increases to capital accounts 6.6% 4.5%
Future salary increases 6.6% 6.7%
Future pension increases 9.2% 5.2%
Average life expectancy of members from the datetifement 17 years 17 years
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38.

2007 2006
Defined contribution plans
Amounts recognised in the consolidated income stz in
respect of defined contribution plans were theofeihg:
Pension Fund of the Russian Federation 199 181
Corporate pension option program 56 -
Stillwater Mining Company savings plan 5 5
Other 14 —
Total 274 186
ENVIRONMENTAL OBLIGATIONS
Decommissioning obligations 557 318
Provision for land restoration 26 4
Total 583 322
Balance at beginning of the year 322 269
New obligations raised (refer to note 23) 3 4
Change in estimate (refer to note 23) 86 5
Acquired on acquisition of subsidiaries (refer tien5) 95 -
Unwinding of discount on decommissioning obligatiqrefer to note 19) 23 19
Charge to the income statement 30 1
Effect of translation to presentation currency 24 24
Balance at end of the year 583 322
During 2007 the Group reassessed the amount ofhttatsioning
obligations for its operations in the Russian Fatien due to changes
in inflation and discount rates, and the resultgroindependent audit
of ore reserves affecting the expected mines @dodates. As a result,
additional decommissioning obligations raised, Wwhi@re presented
as change in estimate.
Key assumptions used in estimation of environmerttiyations
were as follows:
Discount rates 6.0% — 7.7% 6.6% — 7.7%
Future expected increase of expenses 25.0% 25.0%
Expected closure date of mines 2009 — 2056 2007 — 2063
Present value of expected cost to be incurredditiesnent of
environmental obligations was as follows:
Due from second to fifth year 148 41
Due from sixth to tenth year 72 10
Due from eleventh to fifteenth year 53 64
Due from sixteenth to twentieth year 156 83
Due thereafter 154 124
583 322
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39.

40.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade payables

Insurance payable

Payables for property, plant and equipment
Other creditors

Total

The maturity profile of the Group’s trade and othayables was
as follows:

Due within one month
Due from one to three months
Due from three to twelve months

Total

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Cash flow hedges
Nickel future contracts
Platinum future contracts

Total cash flow hedges

At fair value through profit and loss
Derivatives held for trading

Total at fair value through profit and loss

Less: current portion due within twelve months andpresented under current
liabilities

Long-term derivative financial liabilities

The maturity profile of the Group’s derivative fimaal liabilities
was as follows:

Cash flow hedges

Due within one month

Due from one to three months
Due from three to twelve months

Total

At fair value through profit and loss
Due from one to three months
Due from three to twelve months
Due from one to five years

Total

2007 2006
352 191
22 107
a4 21
168 51
586 370
406 212
45 68
135 90
586 370
10 -
6 15
16 15
11 —
11 —
(24) (15)
3 —
2 2
7 3
7 10
16 15
2 —
6 —
3 —_
11 —
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41.

2007

2006

Derivative financial liabilities designated as ait fvalue through
profit and loss

Derivatives held for trading at fair value 11

11

Change in fair value recognised during the yeaibat@ble to changes in
market risk factors 72

Cumulative changes in fair value attributable to clanges in market risk factors 72

Derivatives held for trading represented nickel eagper forward
contracts that were entered into by Norilsk Nick&ica after

the approval of the Activox Project in August 200&lued

as at 31 December 2007 at the fair value of taiefqio of
forward contracts.The portfolio consisted of coatisavith expiry
dates between July 2007 and 31 December 2009dkelrand

31 December 2008 for copper and is revalued onrghhobasis
by reference to relevant nickel and copper forwaides.

DIVIDENDS

On 21 December 2007, the Company declared anrmtdividend in respect of
the year ended 31 December 2007 in the amount & K28 (USD 4.36) per
share. The dividend was paid to shareholders agbvuary 2008. The amount is
net of USD 7 million due to Group subsidiaries. 792

On 28 June 2007, the Company declared a finaleliaidn respect of the year ended
31 December 2006 in the amount of RUR 120 (USD)464share. The dividend
was paid to shareholders on 16 August 2007. Theiani®net of USD 8 million
paid to Group subsidiaries. 842

On 24 November 2006, the Company declared annmt@ikiidend in respect of
the year ended 31 December 2006 in the amount & BJUSD 2.11) per share.
The dividend was paid to shareholders on 29 Deceff}. The amount is net of
USD 4 million paid to Group subsidiaries. —

On 29 June 2006, the Company declared a finaleliaidn respect of the year ended
31 December 2005 in the amount of RUR 53 (USD Jp@8hare. The dividend
was paid to shareholders on 15 August 2006. Theisani®net of USD 4 million
paid to Group subsidiaries. —

399

373

Total 1,634

772
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42. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 25 May 2007, the Group sold its interest in iinhavestments Limited BVI, the company which

owned the entire share capital of CIJSC “Kraus-Mubsidiary, to a related party for a cash constiera

of less than USD 1 million (refer to note 43). Untlee terms of the sale agreement, intra-group oebt
Vimon Investments Limited amounting to USD 41 mifliwas assigned to the buyer. The carrying value of
Vimon Investments Limited net assets at the datkspiosal amounted to USD 18 million.

In January 2006, 51.0% Group's interest in LLC “KMBSKA” was disposed of for a cash consideration
of USD 1 million.

Net assets of the subsidiaries disposed of wefallag/s:

2007 2006
Property, plant and equipment (refer to note 23) 73 -
Other taxes receivable 4 —
Trade and other receivables 3 —
Deferred tax liabilities (refer to note 22) (14) -
Borrowings (48) -
Trade and other payables - (5)
Group’s share of assets disposed of 18 5)
(Loss)/gain on disposal (18)
Net cash inflow from disposal of subsidiaries — 1

43. RELATED PARTIES

Related parties are considered to include sharetsldffiliates and entities under common ownerahigp
control with the Group and members of key managémpersonnel. The Company and its subsidiaries,
in the ordinary course of their business, enter warious sale, purchase and service transactighs w
related parties.

Transactions with related parties

Sale Purchase Purchase Loans
of goods of goods of services given
Year ended 31 December 2007
Company 121 11 44 72
Subsidiaries of the Group 94 242 60 —
Total 215 253 104 72
Year ended 31 December 2006
Company 54 12 71 70
Subsidiaries of the Group 51 154 69 —
Total 105 166 140 70

Interest income received by the Group from relg@dies amounted to USD 26 million for the yearezhd
31 December 2007 (2006: USD 13 million).

In May 2007, the Group sold its investment in asadibry to a related party for a cash consideratidess
than USD 1 million (refer to note 42).

During the year ended 31 December 2006, the Groldgpsoperty, plant and equipment to related partie
for a total cash consideration of USD 19 million.

In November 2006, the Group sold its investme®@d$C “Krasnoyarskaya generatsiya” to related grtie
for a cash consideration of USD 156 million (refenote 26).
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Outstanding balances with related parties

Loans and Investments Accounts Accounts
borrowings and cash receivable payable
31 December 2007
Company — 477 22 29
Subsidiaries of the Group 8 1,031 10 8
Total 8 1,508 32 37
31 December 2006
Company - 463 8 63
Subsidiaries of the Group 6 212 4 20
Total 6 675 12 83

All balances are unsecured and expected to bedéittash. At 31 December 2007 impairment prowisio
for a loan provided to a related party amountdd$® 70 million (2006: USD 70 million).

Compensation of key management personnel
Remuneration of key management personnel of thag=iar the year ended 31 December 2007 comprised
salary and bonuses in the amount of USD 41 mi(g@)96: USD 13 million), including unified socialktan
the amount of USD 1 million (2006: USD 1 million).
44. COMMITMENTS
Capital commitments

The Management Board has approved the followingalagxpenditure budget for the year ending
31 December 2008:

Maintenance of property, plant and equipment 1,151
Expansion of property, plant and equipment 2,839
Total 3,990

2008 budgeted capital expenditure allocated between

Contracted 933
Not contracted 3,057
Total 3,990

Contracted capital commitments beyond 2008 amaubtSD 426 million.
Operating leases

The land in the Russian Federation on which theu@sgproduction facilities are located is owned by
the state. The Group leases land through operkgasg agreements, which expire in various years
through 2054. According to the terms of lease agesds rent fees are revised annually by referance t
an order issued by the respective local autharifibe Group entities have a renewal option at tirkod
lease period and an option to buy land at any tanprice established by the local authorities.
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Future minimum lease payments due under non-cabtelbperating lease agreements at 31 December 2007
were as follows:

Due within one year 15
From one to five years 25
After five years 17
Total 57

Intergovernmental agreement with Kingdom of Norway

In 2001 the governments of the Russian Federatidrkingdom of Norway signed an intergovernmental
agreement in respect of provision of technicalstaste in the reconstruction of metallurgical fdes of
Pechenganickel Combine, a branch of OJSC “Kolskdéiyéng and Metallurgical Company”.

At 31 December 2007 total investment in the reqortibn of metallurgical facilities was agreed ® b
USD 164 million, financed as follows:

Grants from Kingdom of Norway 31
Loan from Nordic Investment Bank 30
Contribution by the Group 103
Total 164

At 31 December 2007 total investment in reconsimnodf metallurgical facilities of Pechenganickel
Combine amounted to USD 18 million.

Long-term contract with Talvivaara

OMG Harjavalta, subsidiary of the Group, has enténéo a ten-year agreement with Talvivaaran
Kaivososakeyhtit Oy (“Talvivaara”) to purchase tatatput of intermediate product containing nickel
and cobalt at future prevailing market prices. Dagithis period the Group is obliged to purchadeast
300,000 tons of nickel.

Long-term contracts with OM Group

In 2007, the Group entered into a five-year supgjseement with OM Group Incorporated to supply up
to 2,500 metric tons (mt) per year of cobalt metplto 2,500 mt per year of cobalt contained irattob
hydroxide concentrate and up to 1,500 mt per yEeoloalt contained in cobalt sulphate solution,

along with various nickel and copper based raw ris$eproduced by Harjavalta Nickel Oy.

Social commitments

The Group contributes to mandatory and voluntagjadrograms and maintains social assets in

the locations where it has its main operating itéesl. The Group’s social assets, as well as Isaaial
programs, benefit the community at large and atenaomally restricted to the Group’s employees.
These contributions are recorded in the periodhitkvthey are incurred.

The Group’s commitments will be funded from its ogash resources.
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45. CONTINGENCIES
Litigation

At 31 December 2007 unresolved tax litigation antedrio approximately USD 55 million
(2006: USD 95 million). Management believes thatitisk of an unfavourable outcome of the litigation
is possible.

In 2007 Federal Service for Supervision of NatlRasource Usage of the Russian Federation
(“Federal Service”) required the Group to compensat the damage of water resources in

the amount of USD 287 million. In 2008 Federal $mnhas filed a lawsuit against the Group in
the amount of USD 177 million. Management of therestimates the risk of satisfying claims
related to compensation of the environmental darasgeossible.

In addition, the Group had a number of claims d@ightion relating to sales and purchases of geods
services from suppliers. Management believes thaé of these claims, individually or in aggregate,
will have a material adverse impact on the Group.

Taxation contingencies in the Russian Federation

The taxation system in the Russian Federationtigealevelopment stage, and is characterised byraus
taxes, frequent changes and inconsistent enfordesthéederal, regional and local levels.

The government of the Russian Federation has cocedemrevision of the Russian tax system and
passed certain laws implementing tax reform. The lags reduce the number of taxes and overall tax
burden on businesses and simplify tax litigatioowdver, these new tax laws continue to rely heaily
the interpretation of local tax officials and feoladdress many existing problems. Many issuescidsd
with practical implication of new legislation araalear and complicate the Group’s tax planningratated
business decisions.

In terms of Russian tax legislation, authoritiegeha period of up to three years to re-open taladsons
for further inspection. Changes in the tax systeam iay be applied retrospectively by authoritmsd
affect the Group’s previously submitted and assktsedeclarations.

While management believes that it has adequatelyiged for tax liabilities based on its interpreiatof
current and previous legislation, the risk remalra tax authorities in the Russian Federationd:take
differing positions with regard to interpretiveugs. This uncertainty may expose the Group to iaddil
taxation, fines and penalties that could be sigaift.

With regards to matters where practice concernagnent of taxes is unclear, management estimate
possible tax exposure at 31 December 2007 to be L480million (2006: USD 204 million).

Environmental matters

The Group is subject to extensive federal, statel@ral environmental controls and regulations in
the countries in which it operates. The Group’srapens involve the discharge of materials and
contaminants into the environment and the disturdar land that could potentially impact on florada
fauna, and give rise to other environmental corern

The Group’s management believes that its miningmoduction technologies are in compliance with all
current existing environmental legislation in tloeiotries in which it operates. However, environraént
laws and regulations continue to evolve. The Gisumable to predict the timing or extent to which
those laws and regulations may change. Such chdrigeccurs, may require that the Group modernise
technology to meet more stringent standards.
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46.

The Group is obliged in terms of various laws, miniicenses and ‘use of mineral rights’ agreements
to decommission mine facilities on cessation ofritsing operations and to restore and rehabilitate
the environment. Management of the Group reguladgsesses environmental obligations related to
its operations. Estimates are based on management&standing of current legal requirements and
the terms of license agreements. Should the ragainés of applicable environmental legislation cleang
or be clarified, the Group may incur additional eonmental obligations.

Russian Federation risk

As an emerging market, the Russian Federation mimiggossess a fully developed business and
regulatory infrastructure including stable bankargl judicial systems, which would generally exist i

a more mature market economy. The economy of thsiRu Federation is characterised by a currency
that is not freely convertible outside of the coaynturrency controls, low liquidity levels for dednd
equity markets, and continuing inflation. As a teseperations in the Russian Federation involve

risks that are not typically associated with thimsmore developed markets. Stability and success of
Russian economy and the Group’s business mainkritspon the effectiveness of economic measures
undertaken by the government as well as the demelopof legal and political systems.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital structure in ordeafeguard the Group’s ability to continue as agoi
concern and to maximise the return to sharehottieosigh the optimisation of debt and equity balance

The capital structure of the Group consists of dehich includes long- and short-term borrowings,
cash and cash equivalents and equity attributald@dreholders of the parent company, comprising
issued capital, other reserves and retained earning

Management of the Group regularly reviews its gepratio, calculated as the proportion of net debt
equity to ensure that it is in line with the Grosijfivestment grade, international peers and cureaginig
level requirements.

The Group is subject to external capital requirei@nposed by banks on certain loans, such asrggari
ratio of not higher than 75%. During 2007 the Groomplied with all the external capital requirensent

Financial risk factors and risk management structue

In the normal course of its operations, the Graugxiposed to a variety of financial risks: marlsk r
(including interest rate, currency and equity imstents price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Group has in place risk management structutecantrol procedures to facilitate the measurement,
evaluation and control of these exposures andectldsk management activities.

Risk management is carried out by a financial nelthagement department, which is a part of treasury
function. The Group has adopted and documentedigsicovering specific areas, such as market risk,
credit risk, liquidity risk and use of derivativiéncial instruments.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes inregerates will adversely impact the financial fessu
of the Group.

The Group’s interest rate risk arises from longd ahort-term borrowings at floating rates.
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During 2007 and 2006 the Group’s borrowings attitwprates were denominated in US dollars.
At 31 December 2007, the Group also had a credilittadenominated in Australian Dollars with ingest
rate varying from Bill Rate of Bank of AustraliaBBBSY").

The Group performs thorough analysis of its interate risk exposure regularly. Various scenaries a
simulated. Based on these scenarios, the Grolgieig@calculate the financial impact of an interage
shift of 1%.

The table below details the Group’s sensitivita % change in those borrowings subject to a figatite.
The sensitivity analysis is prepared assumingttieaamount liabilities at floating rates outstargdat
the balance sheet date was outstanding for theewtealr.

LIBOR-impact BBSY-impact
2007 2006 2007 2006
Loss or gain 62 1 1 -

Management believes that the Group’s exposurdeeest rate risk fluctuations does not require taafdl
hedging activities.

Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value otuie cash flows of a financial instrument denonedan
foreign currency will fluctuate because of chanigesxchange rates.

The major part of the Group’s revenue and relatadketaccounts receivable is denominated in USrdolla
and therefore the Group is exposed primarily to W8BBency risk. Foreign exchange risk arising from
other currencies is assessed by the managemedre Giroup as immaterial.

Weakening of USD against other functional curresicitthe Group’s subsidiaries is partially offsgt b
increase in commaodity prices for metals producethieyGroup, which are generally priced on world
markets in US dollars.

The carrying amounts of monetary assets and liegsildenominated in foreign currencies other than
functional currencies of the individual Group aastas at 31 December 2007 and 2006 were as follows

Assets Liabilities
2007 2006 2007 2006
UsbD 5,273 2,515 6,764 698
EURO 66 10 86 15
AUD 2 - - -
Other currencies 21 7 14 —
Total 5,362 2,532 6,864 713

Currency risk is monitored on a monthly basis sitily sensitivity analysis to asses if a risk faogential
loss is at an acceptable level. The Group calcalle financial impact of exchange rate fluctuation
within 5% on profit for the year in respect of USIBnominated assets and liabilities. The followatge
presents the sensitivity of the Group’s profit beftax to a 5% strengthening of the functionalentres of
the Group entities against USD.
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US Dollars — impact

2007 2006
USD/RUR 86 (91)
USD/BWP (12) -

USD/AUD - -

Management has assessed the Group’s exposuregnaurisk is at an acceptable level and thus nhange
rate hedges are used.

Equity investments price risk

The Group is also exposed to equity investmentepisk arising from equity investments. Certain
portion of the Group’s investments is held for t&gic rather than trading purposes. The sensitivity
analysis below has been determined based on tleeseseto equity price risks at the reporting date.

If equity prices had been 5% higher/lower:

° profit for the year ended 31 December 2007 woulcehzeen unaffected as the quoted investments
are classified as available-for-sale; and

° investment revaluation reserve within equity batawould increase/decrease by USD 380 million
(2006: increase/decrease by USD 354 million), sesalt of changes in fair value of listed secusitie
available-for-sale.

In 2007 the Group’s sensitivity to equity investriseprice risk did not change significantly
compared to 2006.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that counterpartyt défault on its contractual obligations resultinginancial
loss to the Group. Credit risk arises from cashaasth equivalents, deposits with banks as weltexditc
exposures to customers, including outstanding Ueteoélised trade and other receivables. The Gsoup’
exposure to credit risk is continuously monitorad aontrolled.

Prior to dealing with new counterparty, managenassesses the credit worthiness of a potential mesto
or financial institution. Where the counterpartyased by major independent credit-rating agencies,
this rating is used to evaluate creditworthinefisemvise it is evaluated using an analysis of dtesk
available financial statements of the counterparty.

Credit limits for the Group as a whole are notuget

The balances of ten major counterparties are preddmlow:

Outstanding balance

2007 2006
Bank A 3,438 659
Bank B 665 484
Bank C 642 402
Bank D 593 142
Bank E 550 119
Total 5,888 1,806
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Outstanding balance

2007 2006
Company A 10 42
Company B 37 96
Company C 40 62
Company D 41 —
Company E 5 59
Total 133 259

The Group is not economically dependent on a lainitember of customers because majority of its
products are highly liquid and traded on the waddhmodity markets. Metal and other sales to
the Group’s customers are presented below:

2007 2006

Number of Turnover, Number of Turnover,

customers USD million % customers USD million %
Largest customer 1 1,392 8 1 825 7
Next 9 largest customers 9 4,589 27 9 3,429 29
Total 10 5,981 35 10 4,254 36
Next 10 largest customers 10 1,986 12 10 1,940 16
Total 20 7,967 a7 20 6,194 52
Remaining customers 9,152 53 5,729 48
Total 17,119 100 11,923 100

The Group has a concentration of cash and banksitepuith a related party commercial bank, that at
31 December 2007 represented 9% (2006: 22%) dfdash and bank deposit balance.

The Group believes that there is no other significencentration of credit risk.

The maximum exposure to credit risk for cash argh @quivalents, loans and trade and other receisabl

is as follows:

2007 2006
Cash and cash equivalents 4,008 2,178
Loans and trade and other receivables 4,459 1,005
Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will nbe able to settle all liabilities as they fall due.

The Group has a well-developed liquidity risk magragnt structure to exercise control over its short-
medium- and long-term funding. The Group managgsdity risk by maintaining adequate reserves,
banking facilities and reserve borrowing faciliti#&anagement continuously monitors rolling caskvflo
forecasts and performs analysis of maturity prefilefinancial assets and liabilities, and undersatetailed
annual budgeting procedures.
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Presented below is the maturity profile of the Grewborrowings (maturity profiles for other lialigs
presented in notes 38 and 39) based on contragtd&écounted payments, including interest:

Due Due from Due from Due in Duein Duein Due in
within onetc threeta the the the the Due
one three twelve secon( third fourth fifth there-
2007 Total month months months year year year year after
Fixed rate bank loansand
borrowings
Principle 1,745 8 376 824 504 2 - - 31
Interest 148 10 19 65 29 2 2 2 19
1,893 18 395 889 533 4 2 2 50
Floating rate bank loans
Principle 6,331 - 222 2,543 323 2,245 665 333 -
Interest 606 29 57 183 190 113 32 2 —
6,937 29 279 2,726 513 2,358 697 335 —
Total 8,830 47 674 3,615 1,046 2,362 699 337 50
2006
Fixed rate bank loans anc
borrowings
Principle 694 153 - 4 3 501 - - 33
Interest 131 4 6 29 38 29 2 2 21
825 157 6 33 41 530 2 2 54
Floating rate bank loans
Principle 96 - - 1 1 1 93 - -
Interest 29 1 1 6 8 8 5 - —
125 1 1 7 9 9 98 — —
Total 950 158 7 40 50 539 100 2 54
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At 31 December 2007 and 2006 the Group had fingrfeicilities for the management of its day to day
liquidity requirements available with the followitgnks:

2007 2006
Committed credit lines
0OJSC “Sherbank” 611 -
Syndicated revolving credit facility arranged byr&ays Capital,

ING Bank N.V. and Societe Generale 450 —
Syndicated revolving credit facility arranged byc®te Generale 400 400
Credit lines arranged by BNP Paribas (Suisse) &#d.Societe Generale 6,000 —
Total committed credit lines 7,461 400
Uncommitted credit lines

0OJSC “VTB Bank” 489 100
CJSC “ING Bank (Eurasia)” 100 100
CJSC “West LB Vostok” 83 76
CJSC “BNP Pariba” 75 50
CJSC “Calyon Rusbank” 65 50
LLC “Deutsche Bank” 58 37
CJSC “Natexis Bank” 50 50
CJSC “Drezdner Bank” 50 50
0OJSC “Uralsib Bank” 50 50
CJSC “Societe Generale Vostok” 40 40
CJSC “Commerzbank (Eurasia)” 40 20
CJSC “Raiffeisenbank Austria” 40 -
LLC “HSBC Bank (RR)" 40 -
0JSC “Eurofinance Mosnarbank” 38 35
CJSC “Citibank” 25 25
0OJSC KB “MBRD” 20 20
CJSC “Gazprombank” — 120
Total uncommitted credit lines 1,263 823
Bank overdraft facilities
ING (Switzerland) 100 100
Rosbank (Russia) 102 95
BNP Paribas Suisse (Switzerland) 75 150
Credit Suisse (Switzerland) 75 75
Natexis (France) 75 75
Banque Cantonale Vaudoise (Switzerland) 50 50
Sampo (Finland) 45 -
UBS (Switzerland) 40 40
Total bank overdraft facilities 562 585
Total borrowing facilities 9,286 1,808
Less: Outstanding letters of credit (587) (194)
Less: Obtained bank loans related to the abovétiesi (6,811) (145)
Net facilities available 1,888 1,469

47. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The estimated fair values of certain financialmmstents have been determined using available market
information or other valuation methodologies thefuire considerable judgment in interpreting madeta
and developing estimates. Accordingly, the estimafmplied are not necessarily indicative of the am®
that the Group could realise in a current markeharge. The use of different assumptions and esima
methodologies may have a material impact on thmatgd fair values.

Where it was available, management of the Grougroiiied fair value of unlisted shares using a vedona

technique that was supported by publicly availatdeket information. In the absence of such inforomat
available-for-sale investments, were presentedsdf net of impairment.
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48.

At 31 December 2007, the estimated fair valuesnairicial assets, including cash and cash equiwlent
investments in securities, trade and other rect@salmans given and promissory notes, derivaiivancial
liabilities and trade and other payables approx@ahaiheir carrying values due to the short-term neatdi
these instruments. At 31 December 2007, a USD S0@mncorporate bonds due in 2009 had a fair value
of 105.85% or USD 529 million. The fair values der fixed-rate debt and floating-rate debt
approximate their carrying values.

DISCONTINUED OPERATION

On 30 September 2005, at an Extraordinary Geneeatilg of shareholders, the majority of sharehslder
of OJSC “MMC Norilsk Nickel” voted in favour of thepin-off of CJSC “Gold Mining Company Polyus”
and its subsidiaries (the “Polyus Group”) into arreampany OJSC “Polyus Gold” by way of a single
transaction which was completed on 17 March 2006.

The major classes of assets and liabilities of i®{group were as follows:

17 March 2006

Property, plant and equipment and other non-cuessets 1,164
Cash and cash equivalents 2,366
Other financial assets 772
Trade and other payables (294)
Other liabilities (240)
Net assets 3,768
Less: Shares of OJSC “Polyus Gold” received byGhaup (39)
Less: Minority interest (31)
Net assets distributed to shareholders 3,698

The results of operations and net cash flows ofi®Group were as follows:

Period from
1 January 2006
to 17 March 2006
Metal sales 132
Cost of metal sales (71)
General and administrative expenses (15)
Other net operating expenses (23)
Finance costs (2
Income from investments 984
Profit before tax (refer to note 22) 1,005
Income tax (refer to note 22) (12)
Profit for the period 993
Net cash used in operating activities (56)
Net cash generated from investing activities 1,963
Net cash generated from financing activities 50
Earnings per share
Basic and diluted earnings per share from discaetinoperations (US Dollars) 5.2
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49. EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO THE BALANCE SHEET DATE
Share based payment arrangements
On 29 February 2008, the Board of Directors of OJANIC “Norilsk Nickel” approved a new share based
compensation program for management of the Comparder which top managers are entitled to
receive “phantom shares” of OJSC “MMC “Norilsk Ntk The program is effective from April 2008 to
April 2011.
Disposal of investments
Disposal of available-for-sale investments in shareOJSC “OGK-5"
On 8 February 2008, the Group sold its entire $i@ding of 607,181,796 ordinary shares in
0JSC “Fifth Generation Company of the Wholesale gty Market” (‘“OGK-5") at a price of
USD 0.18 per share. Net proceeds from the sale aimddo USD 109 million.

Disposal of available-for-sale investments in sharef OJSC “Polyus Gold”

On 1 April 2008, Corbiere Holdings Limited, a sudiary of the Group, sold its stake in
0JSC “Polyus Gold” for a cash consideration of UEDmillion.

Disposals of investments in LLC “Norilsk-Telecomd, subsidiary of the Group

On 5 May 2008, the Group sold its interest in LLXDYilsk-Telecom”, a 100% subsidiary of the Group,
for a cash consideration of USD 51 million.
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50.

INVESTMENTS IN SIGNIFICANT SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIA TES

Effective % held

Subsidiaries by business segments Country Natuoé business 2007 2006
Mining and metallurgy
0JSC “RAO “Norilsk Nickel” Russian Federation  &stment holding 98.9 98.9
CJSC “NORMETIMPEX” Russian Federation  Distributio 100.0 100.0
0JSC “Kolskaya Mining and
Metallurgical Company” Russian Federation Mining 100.0 100.0
LLC “Institut Gypronickel” Russian Federation  8otce 100.0 100.0
0JSC “Norilsky Kombinat” Russian Federation  Rénfaequipment 98.8 98.8
0JSC “Kombinat “Severonickel” Russian FederatioRental of equipment 98.9 98.9
0JSC “Gornometallurgichesky
Kombinat “Pechenganickel” Russian Federation Rental of equipment 98.9 98.9
LLC “Noriskgeologiya™ Russian Federation  Geological works 100.0 -
LLC “GRK “Bystrinskoye” Russian Federation  Mining 98.8 -
Norilsk Nickel (Asia) Limited China Distribution 100.0 100.0
Norimet Limited Great Britain Investment holding 100.0 100.0
Norilsk Nickel Europe Limited Great Britain Diiution 100.0 100.0
Norilsk Nickel Finance Luxembourg S.A. Luxembourg Financing 100.0 100.0
Norilsk Nickel Holding S.A. Switzerland Investntdrolding 100.0 100.0
Metal Trade Overseas S.A. Switzerland Distributio 100.0 100.0
United States of
Stillwater Mining Company America Mining 54.5 54.9
United States of
Norilsk Nickel USA America Distribution 100.0 100.0
Norilsk Nickel (Cyprus) Limited Cyprus Investment holding 100.0 100.0
Norilsk Nickel Harjavalta OY Finland Metallurgy 100.0 -
Norilsk Nickel Finland O% Finland Investment holding 100.0 -
Norilsk Nickel Cawse Pty Limiteld Australia Mining 100.0 -
MPI Nickel Limitec? Australia Mining 100.0 —
Norilsk Nickel Australia Pty Limited Australia Mining 100.0 -
Norilsk Process Technology Pty Limited  Australia Science 100.0 -
Tati Nickel Mining Company Pty Limitéd ~ Botswana Mining 85.0 -
Republic of
Norilsk Nickel Africa Pty Limited South Africa Mining 100.0 -
Energy and utility
0OJSC “Taimyrgaz” Russian Federation  Gas extractio 98.4 98.4
0OJSC “Norilsko-Taimyrskaya Electricity production and
Energeticheskaya Kompaniya” Russian Federation distribution 100.0 51.0
0JSC “Taimyrenergo” Russian Federation  Rental of equipment 98.8 98.8
Electricity production and
0JSC “OGK-3® Russian Federation distribution 65.2 14.6
Transport and logistics
LLC “Terminal” Russian Federation  Sea shippingmgions 100.0 100.0
0JSC “Yenisey River Shipping Company” Russian Fatitn ~ River shipping operations 43.9 43.9
0JSC “Arkhangelsk Sea Commercial Port” Russiarerstbn  Sea shipping operations 53.1 53.1
CJSC “Alykel” Russian Federation  Airport 100.0 100.0
CJSC “Taimyrskaya Toplivnaya KompaniyaRussian Federation  Supplier of fuel 100.0 100.0
Other
LLC “Norilsknickelremont” Russian Federation Répa 100.0 100.0
LLC “UK “Zapolyarnaya stolitsa” Russian FederationSubcontractor in construction 100.0 100.0
LLC “Norilsk Telecom™® Russian Federation ~ Telecommunications 100.0 100.0
LLC “Zapoliarnaya stroitelnaya companiya” Russkederation  Construction 100.0 100.0
LLC “Norilskyi obespechivaushyi complex” Russiaaederation  Production of spare parts 98.8 98.8
CJSC “Kraus-M® Russian Federation  Property holding - 100.0

!Established as part of reorganisation of 0JSC “MNtilsk Nickel”.

2 Established in 2006.
% Acquiredin 2007 (refer to note 5).

“Increase of ownership in 2007 (refer to note 5).
®Classified as a disposal group (refer to note 33).

® Disposed of in 2007 (refer to note 42).
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Effective % held

Associates by business segments Country Nature of business 2007 2006
Mining and metallurgy
Republic of South
Nkomati Nickel Miné Africa Mining 50.0 -
Energy and utility
British Virgin Holding company
Smart Hydrogen Inc. Islands 50.0 50.0
Electricity production and
0JSC “TGK-14* Russian Federation distribution 27.7 -
Electricity production and
0JSC “Krasnhoyarskenergo” Russian Federation distribution 25.7 25.7
0JSC “Norilskgazprom” Russian Federation Gasaetion 294 29.4
Electricity production and
0OJSC “Kolenergo” Russian Federation distribution 24.9 24.9
0JSC “KTK"? Russian Federation  Steam and hot water productio 50.0 -

* Acquired in 2007 (refer to note 26).
2Established in 2007 (refer to note 26).
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